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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Group is comprised of the [ollowing companies:
LLUKA RIJEKA d.d. Rijeka. the Parent. is the largest concessionaire for shipping and reload of dry cargo in the

Rijcka port basin. The principle activities of the Company comprise maritime transport service provision. port
services. storage of goods and freight forwarding.

LUKA - PRIJEVOZ d.o.0. Skrljevo. 100% owned by Luke Rijeka d.d.. whose principal activity is carriage.

STANOVI d.o.o. Rijeka. 100% owned by lLuke Rijeka d.d.. whose principal activity is management of
investment property.

Parent’s share of consolidated total income amounts to 99%,

Luka Rijeka d.d. holds 49% ownership share in Jadranska vrata d.d. Rijeka - Adriatic Gate Conteiner Terminal
(AGCT). whose principal activity is managing and operating containers. resulting in application of the equity
method of accounting and recognition of the Group’s share in the profit or loss ol equity accounted investees
(AGCT).

[ssucd share capital of the Company amounts to HRK 598.047.300 and is distributed among 3.980.475 sharces
with a nominal value of HRK 100 cach. The Company’s shares are listed on the official market of the Zagreb
Stock Exchange with the ticker LKRI-R-A. The sharcholder structure is as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Number of % of Number of % of Number of % of
shares ownership shares ownership shares ownership

DUUD! - Republic of Croatia 4257326 7L19%, 4270188 71.40% 4307143 72.02%
HZZO 484,780 3 11% 484,780 8.11% 484.780 §.11%
DUUDI - HZMO 214,196 3 58% 214,196 3.58% 214,196 3.58%
Societe Generale — Sphiska Banka d.d /Croatia

osiguranje d.d. {custodial account) 146,080 2.44%, 167,080 2.719% 167,080 2.79%
CERP 12.995 022% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Jadrolinija d.d 36,920 062% 36.920 0.62% 36.920 0.62%
Other sharcholders §28.178 13.85% 807.311 13.50% 770.356 12.88%
Total 5,980,475 100.00%  5980,475 100.00% 5980475 108.00%

DUUDI, HZZQ, CERP and HZMOQ are agencies and institutions of the Republic of Croatia while Jadrolinija
d.d. is a company owned by the Republic of Croatia, Through these institutions and companies and other
smaller shareholders under control of the State. the Republic of Croatia holds a combined ownership interest in
the Company amounting lo approximately 84%.

The Company voluntarily applies the Corporate Governance Code jointly adopted by the Croalian Agency for
Supervision of Financial Services and the Zagreb Stock Exchange. and regularly submits an annual Statement off
cotporate governance. Statement and Code of Corporate Governance are available on the Company’s web site.

Luka Rijeka d.d. I



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES AND COMMITTEES
Audit comminee

Members of the Audit committee during 2014 were as follows:

First name Last name Role

Loris Rak predsjednik
Katarina Drakulic ¢lan

Janja Reljac Elan

Supervisory Board

Members of the Supervisory Board during 2014 were as follows:

First name Last name Role Appointed
Nikola Mendrila President 18.06.2012.
Loris Rak Vice president 18.06.2012.
Katarina Drakuli¢ Member 18.06.2012.
Darko Periic Member 18.06.2012.
Kredimir Trtanj Member 15.04.2011.

Management Board

Members of the Management Board during the reporting period were as follows:

First name Last name Role Appointed
Vedran Devdéic President 28.06.2012.
Linda Sciucca Member 28.06.2012,
Nenad Janji¢ Member 28.06.2012.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Environment

The port of Rijeka has a strategic position in the maritime transport of Central and Eastern European countries.
It is an integral part of the northern Adriatic. and a significant contributor to the development of the Croatian
economy. By Croatian accession to the European Union. the market position of the port of Rijeka and the Rijeka
Gateway has become competitive with similar poris and routes. [n addition. the global changes point o a
growing reaffirmation of the Mediterranean and the Adriatic in terms of maritime traftic. which could further
strengthen Groups market position, particularly in overseas exchanges between Europe and the Iar East. The
world economy. including Europe. still exhibits signs of recession. The recession is also present in the Republic
of Croatia. including the region of Rijeka.

Total turnover

In 2014. total wrnover of dry cargo in port of Rijcka (Luka Rijeka d.d. and Adriatic Gate Container Terminal)
amounted to 4.140.081 tons. representing a 153% increase in comparison 1o the prior year when total turnover
amounted 0 3.602.220 tons.

Description 31?112'?21613. 31?112.%14. Index
Luka Rijeka d.d. (LR) 2,365,920 2,773,412 117
General cargo (1) 1.118.567 791.908 71
Bulk cargo (t) 948.057 1.610.630 170
Wood (1) 299.296 370.874 124
AGCT  tons 1.236.300 1.366.669 1l
TEUR 131.310 149.838 114
LR + AGCT 3,602,220 4,140,081 15

L.uka Rijeka d.d.
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

Luke Rijeka d.d. cargo turnover in 2014 amounted to 2.773.412 and represents a 17% increase in comparison 1o
2013.

STRUCTURE OF CARGO - LUKA RIJEKA d.d. 2014

L wooD,;
370,874;13%

[n 2014 the change in structure of cargo is noted. due 10 increase in bulk cargo (38% in the total cargo structure)
in comparison to the prior year.

In 2014 the Group achicved an operating turnover of 791.908 tons of general cargo. which represents a 29%
decrease in comparison to 2013, An overview of general cargo by type of cargo:

STRUCTURE OF GENERAL CARGO LUKA RIJEKA d.d. 2014

W FRUIT; 33,565,4% & CONTAINERS;
79,142; 10%

B LIVESTOCK;
15,955;2%

OTHER GENERAL CARGO;
87,197;11%
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

Semi-ferrous metallurgy represents a 48% of general cargo tumover. The semi-ferrous metallurgy reloaded
volumes are decreasing as a result of the situation in the overseas market and technical operations in steel mills,
At terminals in concession Luka Rijeka d.d. manipulaied a total of 79.142 tons of containers. or 42.166
containers expressed in TEUR. These containers are used for loading/unloading of goods to/from the container
terminal within the Luka Rijeka d.d. Part of the aforementioned manipulation are empty containers from all
container ship-owners stored at the empty containers depot at the terminal Skrljevo.

Bulk cargo turnover amounts to 1.610.630 tons which is an increase of 70% or 662,373 tons in comparison 1o prior
year. An overview of bulk by type of cargo:

STRUCTURE OF BULK CARGO 2014

Other bulk cargo;

® Grains a i 8
407,426; 25% nd oilseeds

122,521;8%

® Bulk cargo - Bakar;
1,080,653;67%

1t is important to note is that the bulk cargo terminal in Bakar is experiencing an increase in the volume of the traflic,
At the Bakar terminal a 1.116.043 tons of bulk cargo have been loaded. resulting in an 4.9 times increase in
comparison to 2013. the highest traffic level in the last five years. Data on the structure of bulk cargo exhibits shift of
coal traffic 10 the Hungarian market Total wmover of coal amounted to 468.831 tons which presents an 11 times
increasc in comparison (o prior vears. Increase of iron ore in the amount of 602.429 tons for the new Austrian
importer shows an fncrease in turnover by 3.6 times in comparison 10 the prior year. Demanding commercial
negotiations due to intense competitive conditions resulted in reacquisition of new partner: afier more than 20 years
one of the greatest historical pariners of port Rijeka returned - Voestalpine.

The total annual wood umover of 370.874 tons shows the growth in tumover by 24% in comparisen to the prior
vear. with a positive increase in hard wood and soft woed traffic.

The port of Rijeka is the main Croatian port for container watfic. The turnover of the Rijeka port amounted to
§.445.811 tons. or 192.004 TEUR. In comparison to 2013. total comainer tralfic in TEUR has increased by 13%.
The increase is a result of 149.838 TEUR tumover. from concessionaire AGCT located at container terminal
Brajdica and 42.166 TEUR wrnover achicved at terminals in concession of Luka Rijcka d.d.

Luka Rijeka d.d. 4



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

in preparation of implementation of the process of capital increase by issuing new equity shares in the capital
market (IPOY. in 2014 the external auditor conducted a linancial and tax analysis of operations for the period
2012-2014 The restatements are included in the audited financial statements.

Key financial performance indicators and their comﬂarison (index) with the prior year is presented as tollows:

e 01.01.- Comparison with 01.01.-
e _ 31.12.2014, _3?.12.2_013. - restated
Operating income 184.296 102
-income received from abroad 135.064 14]
Operating expenses {182.523) 103
EBIT 1.773 59
EBIT rate 0.96% 58
EBITDA * 13.107 97
EBITDA rate 7.11% 95
Finance income 2.041 35
Finance costs (8.593) 90
Share of profit/loss of equity accounted investee (1.281)

L.oss before tax {6.060)
Loss for the period (5.788)
Comprehensive profit for the year 12.757 887
Assels / liabilitics 588.992 100
Long-lerm assets 527.560 103
Equity and reserves 389.368 105

* EBITDA is calculated as profit before interest. taves. amortisation, depreciarion and impairment of
receivables

Revenues

Although 1otal operating income increased by only 2%. due to an increase of natural indicators. the growth rate
of sales increased by 14.5% in comparison to 2013. The share of foreign income continues to rise. amounting to
73% of total operating income. The other operating income contributed only 10 9% ol total operating income
realized in 2014, in comparison to 2013 when they accounted 10 19% of total operating income (mostly
accounting revenucs).

Financial income decreased due to decrease in interest on deposits given.

Expenses

In the structure of operating expenses. material costs increased by 13.6%. as a consequence of increased natural
turnover, personnel costs decreased by 2.5% while depreciation and other costs were more or less on the same
level. The increase in financial expenses. in addition 1o the planned interest expense. is a result of forcign
cxchange losses due to increase in foreign exchange rate of Liabilitics denominated in US dollar.

Financial Result

Operating revenues were sufficient to cover operating cxpenses. but due to substantial financial expenses. the
Company recorded loss before tax. The loss was increased in part due to the Group's 49% share of loss of its
associate AGCT.

The realised comprehensive income of 12.757 was influenced by changes in revaluation reserves as a
concequence of new valuations of market values of land.

l.uka Rijeka d.d. 5



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT
Market risk

The port of Rijeka is part of the worldwide network of maritime trade traflic and the point of change of transpon
from maritime to land and vice versa. Complex supply chains are extremely dependent on the movement of the
total world economy. as well as on the movement of the economy of certain regions of the world. Maritime trade
market is cvclical and dependent on changes in the world economy.

Competition in the gravitational area of Luka Rijeka is extremely strong. Key competitors of Luka Rijeka are
ports in the North Adriatic cluster (Koper. Trieste. Venice. Ravenna. Monfalcone and Chioggia). By Croatian
accession to the European Union, Luka Rijeka is becoming competitive to other ports of North Adriatic cluster.
supported by recuperation of customers and cargos who had (especially during war period) lefi L.uka Rijeka. In
addition. Luka Rijeka. in the latest European Union transportation strategy from January 2014 entered into a
trans-European transpert network. North Adriatic port cluster has an natural advantage of the shortest maritime
route for cargos originating from the east and passing through the Suez Canal. This advantage is more than
2.000 Nm. which is approx. 6 days of sailing. significantly affecting the overall transport shipping costs.

Nevertheless. the North Adriatic cluster has strong competitors in other clusters: the most significant European
cluster is Northern Sca port cluster (Rotterdam. Amsterdam. Antwerp. Ghent. Hamburg. Bremen. etc.) which is
connected with the port Constanta from the Black Sea cluster with Rhine-Main-Danube Canal. which passes
through the heart of the gravitational area of the Luka Rijeka. This area (especially the markets of Poland and
the Czech Republic) are targeted by the competitive Baltic direction (Rostock. Gdansk. Gdynia. Sczeczin. etc.).

The aforementioned port Constanta in Romania. due to its advantage of inland waterways. is a significant
compelitor for the eastern part of the gravitational area. The Bulgarian part of the Black Sea clusters (Varna and
Burgas) does not present stronger competitive significance (except for the pant of Serbia. which is not the
primary zonc of competing interests for Luka Rijcka).

Finally, the marginal clusters of the southern Adriatic and the Aegean Sea which also target the southern part of
the gravitational area of the Port of Rijeka should be mentioned. This is primarily Luka Ploge. which is ericnted
on Bosnia and Herzegovina. Luka Bar on Serbia and Montenegro. the port of Durres on Albania and Kosovo.
and the Port of Thessaloniki and other Aegean ports which except Greece. target market of Maccdonia and
Serbia. but as above. represent the secondary zone of competing interests of Luka Rijeka.

Management of the Company is aware of the competition. and works on minimizing everyday risk through price
adjustments - tariffs. continuous investments in technology. capacity increase and through increase in labour
productivity.

We will also point out the risk of customers default on its contractual obligations - credit risk. The contract may
be signed with unreliable client (in terms of dynamic of non-fulfilment of the contract. in terms of non-payment
services. etc.} resulting in a variety ol problems (warchouses filled with goods for which warehousing fee has
not been paid. delays in agreed loading of cargo resulting in penalties. etc.). This risk is minimized by updating
existing and potential customers’ databases” where all customers data collected during the year is accumulated.
so that before any contract is signed customers assessment can be made.

Currency risk

The share of forcign income in total operating income amounts 10 73%. Port services are mainly denominated in
EUR. with minority denominated in US dollars for all transit operations of foreign clients. Port services for
domestic clients are denominated in kuna. Exposure te foreign currency risk in EUR is reflected in the majority
of the prices being denominated in EUR. as well as a significant part of the liabilities or their indexation to
EUR. Hence. scrving as a way ol minimizing currency risk. Furthermore. the indexation of kuna to EUR is
stable. Exposure to currency risk in US dollars is duc to minority of prices being denominated in USD. while
liabilities denominated in US dollars further increase the risk due 1o volatility of US dollar as a global currency.
Consequently due to increase of USD exchange rate in 2014. the Company recorded higher financial losses due
to negative exchange rates.

Luka Rijeka d.d. 6



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows at both lixed and floating interest rates. In case of
major changes principal calculation base of the variable interest rate - Euribor. the Company will negotiate with
banks in order 1o reduce/eliminale this risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is managed through maintaining adequate maturity structure of assets and liabilities. and through
weekly and monthly planning and management of inflows and outflows of cash funds. as well as with the
provision of sufficient amounts of liquid assets 10 seule liabilitics as they fall due, Granted short-term credit

limits are used for maintaining liquidity of the business. The Company regularly monitors the relationship
between current assets and current liabilities.

At the end of 2014. the current liabilities exceed its current assels. 1owever. the Company is currently in the
process of raising capital through a public offering of issue of shares expected to be (inalized during 20135.
which would provide funding lor strategic investments. improve liquidity and result in improved future
operaling results.

Technological risk

Technological risk is reflected in the obsolescence of the existing port technology. which increases maintenance
costs. reduces productivity of port manipulation. ie the profitability of the process and reduccs the
competitiveness duc to unreliable and slow service, Technological risks is reduced by the Company’s preventive
quality maintenance. as well as by investing in technology. a nccessity which enables speed. reliability and
efficiency of loading and other port manipulation. [n accordance with the plan. in 2013 a substantial investment
was made in two portal mobile cranes with in the amount of EUR 5 million and investments have continued in
2014 with the purchase of new port equipment (forklifis. loaders) in the amount of EUR 1 million.

[ncrease in the capacity will enable long-term increase in traffic and is the main reason Luka Rijeka is investing
in further expansion of the terminal Skrijevo. as well as the reconstruction of other terminals.

One of the technological factors significant to Luka Rijeka is adequate road and rail infrastructure. In relation to
Luka Rijeka. the road connectivity is satisfving while there is still place for improvement regarding rail
infrastructurc. in particular thorough liberalization of railway operators. This is the risk which is not under the
Company s direct influence. but can be minimised through indirect communication with the relevant Ministry.

Technological processes that are based on technology and use of human resources. and are directed towards the
fulfilment of commercial objectives of the Company are also subject to risks. The risk is minimized by
continuous monitoring and adjustments of the working process which is determined by manipulation of certain
goods and services and implementation of changes through written procedures.

Human resource risk

Port industry is a labour intensive industry. In operational terms it is dominated by the so-called 'Blue collar
workers' or dockers (operators of technical equipment and port transport workers). and their support services
{maintenance. cargo insurance. mooring and departing). Their number. as well as organization into trade unions
presents an important factor in the operation of Luka Rijeka.

In previous vears. the Company significantly reduced the number of workers (o the operational number
necessary for achievement of company’s long-term plans. Quality of the program. as well as constant
consultation with the trade unions have made this process relatively painless. The measures in the restructuring
plan are based on the implementation of new micro and macro organization of the Company (adopted in
December 2014). Furthermore. in order to increase efficiency a planned reduction of 9% in the number of light-
transport workers (LTR) was carried out through retirement. followed by the planned increase in the use of
external services by engaging subcontractors {outsourcing).

Significant personnel risk is high average age of employees in Luka Rijeha. In order to rejurvenate the age
structure of employees. which is an average of 32 years. in December 2014, the Company in accordance with
the Profcssional training program offered training for 22 university educated people. The risk remains due to
lack of adequate workforce (in the leadership and managerial terms). which is a general problem in the Croatian
market. Adequate workforce is necessary for the impiementation of strategies planned by the Luka Rijeka. but
atso demand higher remunerations than those currently offered by the company. The risk can be reduced by

Luka Rijeka d.d. 7



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

cmploying cxperienced stafl’ and effering them appropriate remuneration (for example by introducing a new
system of motivation and remuncration for employees of the company).

Environmental risk

The main environmental risk for the Company is defined by the type and the way of handling the cargo. This
primarily relates to bulk cargo. which while being manipulated can emit dust. or result in air. sea and soil
pollution in the near proximity of manipulation site. This risk is reduced by installing technology that disables it.
For example. at the terminal in Bakar in 2014 were placed special floating dams for reception of ships. which
increase the safety of unloading of cargo and prevent the spreading of possible pollution.

For general cargo there are no specific risks. There is an increased risk in the use of ammoniac in cold storage
within Frigo terminal. but it is eliminated with regular mainienance and alert procedures in case of possible
damage.

There is also a risk associated with the maintenance of vehicles and other manipulation items ol Luka Rijeka
(waste oil. waste water from cleaning. old batteries. old tires. etc.). which is controlled by installation of oil
separators in garages and workshops. as well as by standardized procedures and testing of collected liquid and
solid wastes.

The system of internal control and risk control 10 which the Group is exposed. is done through:

# Control of business processes. The parent company has a certified quality management system 15O
9001-2008. which is constantly monitored. improved and contrelled.

» Conrrol of business/financial transactions and financial statements thorough the accounting system and
the Controlling department of the Parent company

# Annual and long-term planning of the operations at the Group level and at the level of business units.
as well as quarterly monitoring of the plan through Controlling department of the Parent company

# Finally. through the upgrade of the IT systems with the aim of system integration in all business
scgments >

KEY BUSINESS EVENTS IN 2014
Project Terminal Skrijevo

Key events are related 1o the planned investment in the development and medernization of Skrlieve terminal
comprising of: reconstruction of existing road and manipulation areas especially plateau for depot containers,
reconstruction of existing and construction of new infrastructure. (ormation of new operational plateau.
construction of new and reconstruction of existing storage capacity. construction of overhang for storage and
handling of the goods. construction of administrative buildings and halls for service of mechanization and
investment in the new machinery,

Estimated value of the investment is approximately EUR 50 million. and the financing is expected mainly from
the upcoming increase in share capital.

o Fcbruary 2014: location permit issued for Skrljevo terminal Project
e December 2014: issued building permits for all nine phases of the project

Project of share capital increase by issuing of new shares
The share capital increase by issuing of new shares in the capital market planned for 2014, was moved to 2015.

In 2014 the Company carried out preliminary activates for implementation of share capital increase by issuing
of new shares in the capital market (IPQ). Legal. tinancial and tax due diligence was carried out and long-term
business plans developed (2015 — 2030).

Other
- purchase of new port equipment (lorklifts and loaders) in the amount of EUR I million:
- adoption of new macro and micro organization of the Company:

- in accordance with Law on employment incentives the Company together with the Croatian employment
burcau initiated Professional training program and offered training o 22 university educated people

Luka Rijeka d.d. 8



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS PERSPECTIVE

s In 2015 there is a planned increase in the natural trmover by 10%, operating income by 9.8%, and
ERITDA realization rates in the amount of 12.2%, Profit before tax is planned at the rate of 3%.

s The plan assumes capital expenditures in 2015 up to HRK 159 million, of which the majority relates to
the praject Skrljevo, which should begin in the second half of the year,

s  From the macro point of view, investment in railway infrastructure on the corridor Vb and necessary
liberalization of the market of railway operators represent a large and important contribution to the
increase of the competitiveness of Rijeka port system and Rijeka Gateway including Luka Rijeka as the
largest concessionaire for shipping and reload of dry cargo

s In April 2015, the General assembly is planned with the following agenda: decrease of share capital in
respect of losses carried forward and increase of share capital by issuing new shares

« In April/May 2015 approval of prospective issuance of shares by HANFA is expected, and in June
2015 the registration of increase in capital due to issuing of new shares

o Funds received by issuance of new shares are an investment in development and modernization of
terminal Skrljevo, where in July 2015, concurrently with the completion of the increase in share capital
process, construction works are expected to start

«  The implementation of the new micro and macro erganization of the Company, which was adopted in
December 2014 and will start to be implemented from | March 2015 onwards.

s “Port of Rijeka - logistics hub for exploration of hydrocarbons in the Adratic” is a new project for
which the Agency for hydrocarbons expressed full support. As a project leader the Company has
brought together companies with whom it has been working together for many years and with whom in
a partnership will offer wide range of services to platforms and investigative units in the Adriatic.
Signing of a collaboration agreement with the Agency for hydrocarbons is expected soon, which will
result in Luka Rijeka officially becoming a logistics hub for the exploration of hydrocarbons in the
Adriatic.

The annual report was prepared and approved by the Management Board as signified below:

Vedran Devéif 2 March 2015
President of the Mandgement Board Luka Rijeka d.d.
Linda Sciucea (7 [: ,{ Z&ﬁﬁ' lof Riva |
Member of the Mgnagement Board Rijeka

- Croatia

MNenad Janjié

Member of the v B
LA RIJEKA d.d.
Rijeka, Riva 1
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Management Board is required to prepare the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries and of the results of their operations and cash
flows, in accordance with applicable accounting standards, and is responsible for maintaining proper accounting
records to enable the preparation of such financial statements at any time. [t has a general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably available to it to safeguard the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities,

The Management Board is responsible for selecting suitable accounting policies to conform with applicable
accounting standards and then apply them consistently; make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company and its subsidiaries will continue in business, After making enquiries, the
Management Board has a reasonable expectation that the Company and its subsidiaries have adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Management Board continues
to adopt the going concern hasis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The Management Board is responsible for the submission to the Supervisory Board of the consolidated financial
statements, following which the Supervisory Board is required to approve the consolidated financial statements
for submission to the General Assembly of Sharcholders for adoption.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised by the Management Board on 2 March 2015 for issue to
the Supervisory Board and are signed below to signify this.

Linda Sciucca \f
Member of the \'!rfanqgenmq-' Ef.?_g?f RIIEKA d.d
2T Wy [ 0

Rijeka, Riva 1
Luka Rijeka d.d.

Riva |
51 000 Rijeka
Republic of Croatia

Rijeka, 2 March 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the shareholders of Luka Rijeka d.d.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Luka Rijeka d.d. (“the Company™),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2014, and of its consolidated financial performance and its

consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we note that the corresponding figures presented, excluding the adjustments
described in note 7, are based on the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December
2013, which were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements
on 15 April 2014. As part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements we have also audited the
adjustments described in note 7. In our opinion, these adjustments have been properly applied and presented.

Other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to legal and regulatory requirements, management has prepared the annual report set out on pages 1 to
9. Management is responsible for the preparation and content of the annual report in accordance with Article 18
of the Accounting Act of the Republic of Croatia. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consistency
of the information in the annual report with the audited financial statements based on procedures we considered
appropriate to perform in accordance with Article 17 of the Accounting Act of the Republic of Croatia. In our
opinion, the information given in the accompanying annual report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with those financial statements.

/o s

KPMG Croatia d.o.o. zgfeviziju 2 March 2015
Croatian Certified Ayditors K PMG Croatia

Eurotower, 17th flebr d.o.o. za reviziju

Ivana Ludic¢a 2a Eurotower, 17. kat

10000 Zagreb vana Lué¢i¢a 2a, 10000 Zagreb

Croatia E:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Croatian language. All possible care has
been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of interpretation
of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this translation.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

M3 2012
{in thousands of HRK) Note 2014 restated * restated *
Revenue from sales 8 167.351 146.201 169.260
Other income 9 16.945 33.976 19.108
184,296 180,177 188,368
Materials. services and consumables used 10 (67.398) (59.346) (58.705)
Personnel expenses i (81.228) (83.329) (83.845)
Depreciation and amortisation 17.18.19 (10.127) (10.493) (12.239)
Other expenscs 12 (23.770) (24.026) (32.299)
(182,523) (177,194) (187,088)
Finance ncome 13 2,041 5.853 5.296
Finance costs 14 (8.593) (9.528) {1.276)
Net finance income/{costs) 6,552) (3,675) (1,980)
Share of profit/(loss) of equity -accounted investees 20 (1.281) 1.913 923
Profit before tax (6,060) 1,221 223
Income tax{expensc) benefit 13 272 217 (826)
Profit/(loss) for the year (5.788) 1,438 (603)
Revaluation of AFS financial assets (net of tax) 359 - 55
Revaluation of land (net of tax) 18.186 - -
Other comprchensive income 18,545 = 55
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 12,757 1,438 (548)
Earnings/(loss) per share (in HRK)
- basic and diluted 16 {0.97) 0.24 {0.10)

* See Note 7.

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of thesc consolidated financial statements.

L.uka Rijeka d.d. 12



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

3122013 31.12.2012 31122011
(in thousands of HRK} Note 31.12.2014 restated * restated * restated *

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assels 17 m 1158 1478 1.435
Praperty, plant and equipment / 409410 383.323 365479 351423
Investment property 14 9.982 10.699 11.632 11.879
Invesiments in equity accounted investecs 20 89.163 90,444 88.331 $7.608
Financial assets available for sale 21 2217 2.542 2.876 2815
Non-current financial assets 22 8.740 17.631 19413 25.653
Deferred tax assels {3 1.277 6.947 6.345 6.459
Total non-current assets 527560 512,944 495,754 187,272
Current assels

Inventories 1.084 1.365 1.409 2222
Trade and other receivables 24 38.042 35.293 37.382 36.217
[ncome tax receivable 467 109 112 -
Current financial assets 23 19.211 34.733 48.797 0172
Cash and cash equivalents 25 2,623 2414 2468 2444
Total current assels 61,427 73,914 90,368 111,055
Total assets 588,987 586,858 586,122 598,327
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' equity

Share capital 26 598.048 598.048 508.048 598.048
Capital and other reserves 27 4968 - 94 94
Revaluation rescrves 277 36.1t1 17.566 17.566 17511
Accumulated losses (249.759) (243.971) (245.503) {244.900)
Total equity 389,368 371,643 370,205 370,753
Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 28 68.921 74.521 75.203 76.625
Provisions 29 16.924 18.039 29.085 31494
Deferred tax lability 13 14,724 10.171 10.171 10,171
Total non-current liabilities 100,569 102,731 114,459 118,290
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 30 45.019 45.859 50.174 52,785
Income tax liability 188 4 . 12.077
Borrowings 28 $2.942 49.538 31.056 27401
Provisions 29 941 17.083 20.228 17.021
Total current liabilities 99,050 112,484 101,458 109,284
Total liabilities 199,619 215,215 215,917 227,514
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 588,987 586,858 586,122 598,327

* See Note 7.

I'he accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Luka Rijeka d.d. 13
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

13 012
(in thousands of HRK) Nore 2014 restated * restated *
Profit/(loss) befere tax {6,060) 1,221 123
Share of net result of equuty accounted vestee 20 1.281 (1.913) (923)
Depreciation and amortization 17.18. 19 10,127 10,493 12.239
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles y (1.207) (1.244) (184)
Impairment losses gains on trade receivables - net 12 1.208 36 1.702
[nterest income I3 (794) (2.051) {3.328)
[nterest expense 14 4.608 4.690 6117
Gan on disposal of AFS financial assets 13 (26) -
Impairment of msurance policies 4 - 2.188 -
Losses on equity insiruments i4 158 334 -
Net increase{reversal) of provisions 912 (666) (825) 1310
Write-ofT of liabilities for sold State owned apartments - (9.663) -
Foreign exchange dilferences - net 2493 102 111
Changes in working capital: 11,122 3,388 17,267
Decreasef{increase) in inventories 281 44 813
Decrease/{increase) m trade and other receivables (3.941) 2,029 197
Increase/{decrease) in trade and
other pavables 4484 224 16233}
Increase/{decrease) in provisions 29 (16,631) (13.366) (512)
Cash generated from eperations (4,685) (5,681 11,532
Income tax paid (381) {611) 112.830)
Interest paid {3.764} (3.482) (5.095)
Net cash from operating activities (8,830) (9,776) (6,393)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and
intangibles (14.075) {26.744) (26.186)
Nel proceeds/{repayments) with respect to finance lease arrangemenis (1412) (LI51) (884)
Proceeds [rom disposal of property, plant and equipment. intangibles
and investment property Y17.181% 5.166 2,041 198
Net inflows (outflows) related to sale of
Group and State owned apariments 22,24, 30 (997) 2.251 1.603
Interest received 794 2051 3.328
Proceeds [rom sale of AFS financial assets 1321 613 - =
Net mflows {outflows) from msurance policies 1710 (1.679) (1.825)
Nel mflows (outllows) from bank deposits 23 15,522 Bd.064 27.091
Net inflows (outflows) from non-current financial assets 22 {136) 40 {138}
Net cash from investing activities 13,187 (9,127) 3,189
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 46977 39417 35,022
Repavment of borrowings (31.125) (20,568) {31.894)
Net cash from financing activities (4,148) 18,849 3,228
Net decrease of cash and cash cquivalents 209 (54 24
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2414 24068 2444
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 25 1,623 2,414 2,468

* See Note 7.

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these consolidated linancial

statements.

Luka Rijeka d.d.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION
History and incorporation

Luka Rijeka d.d. {"the Company”) was formed through conversion of the former social company and registered as
a joint-stock company at the Commercial Court in Rijeka on 25 January 1999 under the trade register number
040141664, The Company’s PIN number is 92590920313. The principle activitics of the Company comprise
maritime transport service provision. port services. storage of goods and {teight forwarding.

All subsidiaries are based in Rijeka. Croatia. Principal activities of subsidiaries are as follows: management of
investment property (subsidiary Stanovi d.0.0.). wholesale and rental of office space (subsidiary OPI d.o.0.).
carriage. warchousing and freight (subsidiary Luka prijevoz d.o.0.).

The Company is headquartered in Riva 1. Rijeka. Croatia.

issued share capital of the Company amounts to HRK 598.047.500 and is distribuied among 5.980.475 shares
with a nominal value of HRK 100 each,

The Company s shares are listed en the official market of the Zagreb Stock Exchange with the ticker LKRI-R-A.
The sharcholder structure is shown in note 26. Members of the Supervisory Board during the reporting period
were as follows:

First name Last name Role Appointed
Nikola Mendrila President 18.06.2012
Loris Rak Vice president 18.06.2012
Katarina Drakuli¢ Member 18.06.2012
Darko Pericic¢ Member 18.06.2012
Kregimir Trtanj Member 15.04,2011

Members of the Management Board during the reporting period were as follows:

First name Last name Role Appointed
Vedran Devéic President 28.06.2012
Linda Sciucea Member 28.06.2012
Nenad Janji¢ Member 28.06.2012

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PREPARATION
(i) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with [ntemational Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS™). Although these financial staiements are the first sct of
financial statement prepared by the Group in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union. this is not considered a first time adoption of IFRS as the Group prepared
financial stalements in previous periods in accordance with IFRS without limitations with respect to those
standards not adopted by the EU.

Financial statements are presented for the Company and its subsidiaries and equity accounted investees - they are
consolidated financial statements of the Company. The consolidated financial statements of the Company
comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. These consolidated financial statements
were authorised for issue by the Management Board on 2 March 2015.

{ii) Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. except for the following:
. Revaluation of land as stated in note 3.7 {ii}

. Financial assets available for sale as stated in note 3,135

Methods used lor fair value measurement are explained in note 6.

{iii) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prepared in the Croatian kuna {("HRK™). which is also the functional currency.
rounded o the nearest thousand.

L.uka Rijeka d.d. 16



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below,
These policies have been consistently applied by the Company and its subsidiaries to all periods presented in
these financial statements.

3.1 Basis of consolidation

The censolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Luka Rijeka d.d. ("the Company™)
and entitics controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) as at and for the vears ended 31 December 2014, 2013
and 2012. The Company and its subsidiaries are together referred to as the Group.

(i) Business combinations

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting 1o account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred. the liabilities incurred
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
transferred or liability assumed. Acquisition related costs arc expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are generally measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess ol consideration transferred. the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
acquisition-date fair value of any previous cquity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net asscts acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of bargain purchase. the difference is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.

(ii) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entitics) controtled by the Group. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed to. or has rights to. variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred 1o the Group and are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

(iii) Associafes

Associates are all entities over which the Group or the Company have significant influence but not control.
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. The Group accounts for
investments in associales using the equity method and the Company accounts for them at cost.

The Group’s share of its associates” post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income statement. and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income, The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment,
When the Group’s share of losscs in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate. including any
other unsccured receivables. the Group does not recognise further losses. unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated (o the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also climinated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates are been changed where necessary (o
cnsure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(i} Transactions eliminated on consolidation

[ntra-group balances and transaciions. and any unrcalised gains arising from intra-group (ransactions. are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with
associates and jointly controlled entities are eliminated io the extent of the Group’s interest in the enlerprise.
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associates are eliminated against the investment in the associate.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains. but only 1o the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Luka Rijeka d.d. 17



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
32 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown. net of valuc-added tax. returns. volume rebates
and trade discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured. it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow 1o the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below.

(i) Revenue from services

The Group provides port related services such as carriage. transhipment. freight. manipulation (on and off
loading) and warehousing of various types of cargo.

Sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. by reference o stage
of completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of
the total services 1o be provided (for instance. number of tnnes off or on loaded compared to total shipment
size: of number of storage dayvs clapsed compared to the total number of storage days contracted).

(i) Finance income

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and foreign currency gains. Interest income is recognised as it accrues. using the
effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

33 Leases

The Group leases certain property. plant and cquipment. Leases of property. plant and equipment. where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of fair value of the leased property or the present value of
minimum lease payments. Each lease pavment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as o
achieve a constant rate on the balance outstanding. The interest element of the finance costs is charged 10 the
income statement over the lease period. The property. plant and cquipment acquired under linance leases are
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

l.eases where the significant pertion of risks and rewards of ownership are not retained by the Group are
classified as operating feases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a
straight-linc basis over the period of the lease.

34 Foreign currency transactions
(i) Transactions and balances in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the forcign exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are retranslated into the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at thai date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and (rom the translation of
monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and items that are measured in terms of historical cost of a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Non-monctary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. which are stated at historical cost. are
translated into functional currency al foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of transaction.

[.uka Rijcka d.d. 18



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
35 Intangible assets

Where patents. licences. and similar rights are acquired by the Group from third parties the costs of acquisition
arc capitalised to the extent that future economic benefits are probable and will flow to the Group.

Licences are amortised over their estimated useful lives, Estimated useful lives are reviewed annually and
impairment reviews are undertaken if events occur which call into question the carrying values of the assels.

Subsequent expenditure on capitatised intangible asscts is capitalised only if it is probable that it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates and those benefits will llow to the
Group. All other expenditure is recognised in the profit or loss as an cxpensc as incurred.

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets. Intangible assets are amortised from the date on which they are available for use. The estimated useful
lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Software 1 -5 years
36 Investment property

Investment preperty comprises properties held 1o earn rentals. for capital appreciation. or both. Inbuilt equipment
is considered part of the investment property. Cost includes all expenditure directly related to the acquisition of
the asset. [nvestment property under course of construction is classified as non-current tangible asscts in the
course of construction until it is ready for use. Investment property is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses,

Subsequeni expenditure for investment property is capitalised only if it is probable that it increascs the luture
economic benefits embodied in the specilic asset to which it relates and it can be reliably measured. Regular
maintenance expenditure is recognised in income statement as an expense as incurred.

Depreciation is charged 1o income statement over the estimated useful economic life on a straight-line basis to all
investment property except from those in the course of construction (in the case of further development of
existing investment property). using the following depreciation rates reflecting their estimated useful lives:

Residential apartments 65 years
3.7 Property, plant and equipment
(i) Buildings, plant and equipment

Buildings. plant and equipment are included in the consolidated statemeni of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expendiwre is included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a scparale assel. as
appropriate. only when it is probable that future economic benelits associated with the item will flow 10 the
Group and the cost of the item can be measurcd reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged 1o the statement of comprehensive income during
the financial period in which they are incurred,

Assels under construction are not depreciaied. Depreciation of buildings. plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line methed to allocate their cost less any residual value over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 13 to 60 vears
Equipment and fittings 2o § years
Leasehold improvements 10 10 30 vears

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of the
assel less the estimated costs of disposal. if the asset were already of the age and in the conditien expected at the
end of its useful life. The assets” residual values and useful lives arce reviewed. and adjusted if appropriate. at
cach reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is grealet than its estimated recoverable amount (note 3.8).

Gains and losses on disposals arc determined as the difference between the income from the disposal and the
carrving amounts of the assel disposed. and are recognised in profit or loss within other income/expenses.

l.uka Rijcka d.d. 19



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}
3.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(ii) Land

After initial recognition at cost. land is carried at a revalued amount. being the fair value at the date of the
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

IFair value is the price that would be reccived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (ie an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valvation technique.

When the carrving amount is increased as a result of revaluation, the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as a revaluation reserve, Revaluation increase is recognized as
income o the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized as expense.

When the carrying amount is decreased as a result of revaluation. the decrease is recognized as an expense.
Revaluation decrease is recorded to the revaluation reserve only to the extent that it does not exceed the amount
held in the revaluation reserve for the same assel.

The revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity in a way that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from the amount which would be determined using fair values at the reporting date. Centain land is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of land (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
procecds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss when it is derecognised.

The relevant portion of the revaluation surplus realized in the previous revaluation is released to retained
earnings on the disposal of the revalued asset.

(iii} Assets under the concession arrangement

The Group has a long-term service concession arrangement for the provision of port related services which
generate the majority of its revenue. The concession arrangement in place involves the transfer of operating
rights aver the port of Rijeka for a limited period. under the control of the local port authority. using dedicated
assets (port infrastructure) either built by the Group during the term of the concession arrangement or made
available to it for a fee or nil consideration.

This arrangement defines "public service obligations” of the Group in return for remuneration. The remuneration
is based on operating conditions. continuity of service. price rules and obligations with respect 1o the
maintenancefreplacement of port infrastructure. The contract determines the conditions for the transfer of port
infrastructure to the local port authority or a successor at its expiry.

Maintenance expenditure

Maintenance of asscts which are part of the concession arrangement is recognised as an expense when incurred
within profit or loss and presented within cost of materials and services used.

Capital expenditure into the concession areq

Capital expenditure into port infrastructure made in accordance with the terms of the concession arrangement is
recognised as an assct within the appropriate class of property. plant and equipment and carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

In cases where these assels relate to items which are transferred o the local port authority (“Grantor™) at the
expiry of the concession arrangement. the depreciation of such assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost less any residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the remaining
term of the concession arrangement.

In cases where these assels are not transferred to the Grantor. the depreciation of such assets is calculated in
accordance with the depreciation policy applicable (o the category property. plant and equipment to which the
assel is classified in accordance with accounting policy 3.7 (i).

Assets transferved to the Group by the concession Grantor
As part of the concession arrangement. the local port authority (the Grantor) transferred the operational rights
over a number of assets comprising the port infrastructure to the Group which is entitied 1o use thesc asscts in the

course of providing the services defined in the concession arrangement. Such asscts are not recognised by the
Group and are instcad kept off balance sheet.

l.uka Rijcka d.d. 20



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.8 Impairment of nen-financial assets

At each reporting date. the Group reviews the carryving amounts of its non-financial assets (apart from inventory and
deferred tax assets which are separately reviewed) 1o determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists. the recoverabie amount of the asset is estimated in order 1o
determine the extent of the impairment loss (il any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset. the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1o which the asset belongs.
Where a rcasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified. corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units. or otherwise they are allocated 10 the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible asscts not vet available for use arc tested for impairment
annually. and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use. the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments ol the time value ol money and the risks specific 1o the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount. the
carrying amount of the asset {(or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount. in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses. the carrnving amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. but so that the increased carrying amount does not cxceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined net of deprecation or amortisation had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is rccognised
immediately in profit or loss. unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount. in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increasc.

3.9 Inventories

Inventories of raw materials and spare parts are stated at the lower of cost. determined using the FIFO method.
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade goods are carried at the lower of purchase cost and nel realisable value.
3.10 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at cost which is equal to the fair value at the moment of recognition
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. less an allowance for
impairment,

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash in hand. deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid instruments with original mawrities ol three months or less.

.12 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions associated with them and that the grants will be received. Government grants are recognised in profit
or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognisces as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically. government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase. construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue
in the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred 1o profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related asscts, Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenscs or loss already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support 1o the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.13 Employee benefits
(i} Pension obligations and post-employment benefits

In the normal course of business through salary deductions. the Group makes payments to privately operated
mandatory pension funds on behalf of its employvees as required by law. All contributions made to the mandatory
pension funds are recorded as salary expense when incurred. The Group is not obliged to provide any other post-
cmployment benefits with respect to these pension schemes.

(ii)  Termination benefits

Termination benelits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date. or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits as expenses when i1 is demonstrably committed to cither: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without pessibility of withdrawal: or
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,

(i) Regular retivement benefits

Retirement benefits falling due more than 12 months after the reporting date are discounted to their present value
based on the calculation performed at each reporting date by an independent actuary. using assumptions
regarding the number of siaff likely to carn regular retirement benefits. estimated benefit cost and the discount
rate which is determined as average expected rate of return on investment in government bonds. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from expericnce adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

(v} Long-term employee benefits

The Group recognises a liability for long-term employee benefits (jubilee awards) evenly over the period the
benefit is earned based on actual years of service. The long-term cmployee benefit liability is determined
annuatly by an independent actuary. using assumptions regarding the likely number of staff to whom the benefits
will be pavable. estimated benelfit cost and the discount rate which is determined as the average expected rate of
return on investment in government bonds. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(v} Short-term employee benefits

The Group recogniscs a liability for employee bonuses where contractally ebliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

314 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at cach reporting date and
adjusted 10 reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of discounting is material. the amount of the provision
is the present value of the expendiwres expected to be required to setile the obligation. determined using the
estimated risk free interest rate as the discount rate. Where discounting is used. the reversal of such discounting in
each vear is recognized as a financial expense and the carrying amount of the provision increases in cach year o
reflect the passage of time.

Provisions for restructuring costs are recognized when the Group has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring
that has been communicated to parties concerned.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

315 Financial assets

Financial assels arc recognised and derecognised on the trade date and are initially measured at fair value. plus
transaction costs. except for those financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss. which are initially
measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified as -available-for-sale financial assets” (AFS) and ‘loans and receivables’. The
classilication depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate.
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the [inancial asset. or. where
appropriate. a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
Available-for-sale financial assets (AFS)

AFS financial assels are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables. (b) held-to-maturity investments or {c¢) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Unlisted shares and listed redecmable notes held by the Group that are traded in an active market are classilied as
being AFS and are stated at fair value, Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 6. Gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value are recognised direetly in other comprehensive income and presented in equity in
the investments revaluation reserve with the exception of impairment loss. interest calculated using the cffective
interest method and foreign exchange gains and loss on menetary assets. which are recognised directly in profit or
loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired. the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in the investmenis revaluation reserve is included in statement of comprehensive income for the period.

Dividends on AFS cquity instruments are recognised in statement of comprehensive income when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established.

The fair value of AFS financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains and loss that are
recognised in profit or loss are determined based on the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange
gains and loss are recognised in other comprehensive income,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are nen-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoled in
an active market, Loans and receivables with fixed or determinable pavments are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. less any cumulative impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applyving the effective interest raie. except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impainnent of financial assets

Financial assels. except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. are asscssed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considerced to be impatred when there is objective
evidence that. as a result of one or more events that occurred afier the initial recognition of the financial assel. the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For securities classified as available for sale. significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
315 Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (contined)
For all other financial assets. objective evidence of impairment could include:
¢ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty: or
¢ breach of contract. such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments: or
¢ it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or linancial re-organisation: or
¢ the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categorics of financial assets. such as trade receivables. assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are. in addition. assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments. an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 360 days. as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaull on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost. the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost. the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the cstimated future cash lows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrving amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables. where the carrving amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible. it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial assct is considered to be impaired. cumulative gains or fosses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured al amortised cost. if. in a subsequent period. the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 1o an event occurring after the impairment was recognised. the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity securities. impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent 1o an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt sccurities.
impairment loss are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring afier the recognition of the impairment loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights o the cash flows from the asset expire: or
it transfers the financial assct and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 1o another entity, If
the Group neither transfers nor relains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred assct. the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset. the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.16 Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as cither financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instriments

An equity inserument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity alter deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received. net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial labilitics are classified as cither financial liabilities *at FVTPL™ or "other financial liabilities™. The Group
has no financial Habilitics designated as FVTPL.

Orher financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities. including borrow ings, are initially measured at fair value. net of transaction cosls.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. with
interest cxpense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the linancial liability. or. where appropriate. a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when. and only when. the Group's obligations are discharged. cancelled
or they expire.

317 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value. net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption value

is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of qualifying asscts. which
are assets that nccessarily take a substantial peried of time (o get ready for their intended use or sale. are added to
the cost of those assets. until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their cxpenditure on
qualifving assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other botrowing costs are charged to the statement of income in the period incurred.

Bomrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months afier the reporting date.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.18 Share capital

Share capital consists of ordinary shares. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
oplions are shown in cquity as a deduction. net of tax. from the proceeds of those transactions. Any cxcess of the
fair value of the consideration received over the par value of the shares issued is presented in the notes as a share
premium, Where the Group purchases its own equity share capital (ireasury shares). the consideration paid.
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from cquity attributable to
the Group's equity holders until the shares are cancelled. reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are
subsequently sold or reissued. any consideration received. net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects. is included in equity attributable 1o the Group’s equity holders,

3.19 Dividends

Dividend distribution to the Company's sharcholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s sharcholders.

3.20 Segment reporting

Segment represents a separable part of the Group cither as a part engaged in providing products or scrvices
(business segment) or as a part engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment) that is subject to risk and benefits that differ from those of other segments.
The Group does not report segment information in tenms of the requirement of IFRS 8 Operating segments as
internal reporting is not based on scgmental information other than revenues per type ol cargo.

3.21 Taxation
(i) Income ax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. [ncome tax expense is recognised in profit or loss excepl
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity. in which case it is recognised in other
comprechensive income,

Current tax is the expected 1ax payable on the taxable income for the year. using lax rales enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. and any adjustment to iax payable in respect of previous years.

(ii) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method. providing for temporary differences between the
carrving amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of
goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled companies when it is probable that their status will not change in the near future, Deferred tax is
measured at the 1ax rates that arc expecied to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse. based
on the laws thal have been enacied or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary difference can be utilised, Deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets. and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity. or on different tax
entities. but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be realised simultaneously.

{iii) Tax exposures

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax. the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax
positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This asscssment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future cvents. New information may become
available thal causes the Group to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities: such
changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made.

{iv) Value added tax (VAT)

The Tax Authorities require the settlement of VAT on a net basis. VAT related to sales and purchases is
recognised and disclosed in the statement of financial position on a net basis. Where a provision has been made
for impairment of receivables. impairment loss is recorded lor the gross amount receivable. including VAT,
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NOTE 4 - NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards. amendments 1o standards and interpretations have been released and are elfective
but not mandatory for the year ended 31 December 2014 and/or are not yet adopted by the European Union and
as such have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. It is not expected that these standards will
have a signilicant effect on the financial statements of the Group.

NOTE S - KEY ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
Critical judgements and estimates in applyving accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires management o make judgments.
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policics and reported amounts of assets and liabilitics.
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expericnce and various
other factors that are believed 10 be reasonable under the circumstances. the results of which form the basis of
making the judgments about carrving values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affccts only that period or in the
period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of 1FRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next vear are discussed below.

(i) Service Concession Arrangements

The European Union adepted TFRIC 12 **Service Concession Arrangements™” effective for financial years starting on
or after 1 April 2009. A significant part of the Group's registered activity is performed on an area under
concession over maritime domain. According to the Maritime Domain and Seaports Act the maritime domain is
managed by the Port Authority of Rijeka. who is the concession Grantor. The concession agreement was
originally signed on 19 September 2000 for a period of 12 vears and renewed in 2011 thereby extending the
concession period by a further 30 vears ending in 2042, The concession agreement concerns the port operations in
the established territory (Port of Rijeka area). at the risk and responsibility of the Operator and taking into account:
the technical regulations applicable 1o the operation. modermnization, rehabilitation and development of port services
as specilied in the Maritime Domain and Seaports Act: the terms and conditions of the licence for provision ol port
services: minimal service limits. and other requirements specified by the Port Authority of Rijeka. According to the
concession arrangement. the Operator will have the right of use over the assets representing the infrastructure of the
port (“relevant assets”} owned by the Port Authority of Rijeka and focated in the above-mentioned territory for the
purpose of providing port services. Ownership right over the relevant assets are held by the Grantor and these assets
are not accounted for in the Company’s accounts.

The Concession Agreement defines obligations for reconstruction. investments and maintenance of the area
under concession. Under the Concession Agreement. Operator has the obligation to cover all costs associated
with performing concession activities (energy. water. gas. postal and telephone services. garbage collection and
similar related costs). as well as utilitics. water charges. water protection fees. insurance costs and other
miscellancous fees arising from the use of area under concession.

In addition (o the above costs. as a price for the concession. the Operator pays an annual concession fee composed of
a fixed fee per square metre of area under concession and a variable [ce per tonne of cach type of cargo transhipped
through the Port of Rijeka.

Furthermore. according 1o the concession agreement. the Operator is required 1o incur capital expenditure relating to
the maintenanceireplacement of port infrastructure assets in the concession area (including buildings, plant,
machinery and equipment) in a total amount of EUR 146 million in accordance with a predefined scheduie (for
delails sec note 34 - Capital commitments). The Operator is obligated to return the “relevant assets™ (including the
investments into refevant assets as prescribed by the coneession arrangement) back to the Grantor upon expiry of the
concession arrangement and 10 demolish. at no cost and on the request of the Grantor. any assets in the concession
area if the grantor so requires (currently the Operator does not expect any future demolition costs).
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NOTE 5 - KEY ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Critical judgements and estimates in applying accounting policies (comtinued)
(i) Service Concession Arrangements (continued)

As al the reporting date. the Company is controlled by the State. IFRIC 12 deals with public-to-private service
concession arrangements. Since the Company is controlled by the State. the current concession arrangement is a form
of public-to-public service arrangement and therefore does not fall under the provisions of IFRIC 12,

However. the Company is currently in the process of raising capital for the purpose of capital investment via an
initial public offering (“1PO™) which is expecied to be finalised in 2013 and as a rcsult. management is re-analysing
the accounting treatment used and applicability of [FRIC 12 having in mind a possible change in ownership structure
and other provisions regarding applicability of IFRIC 12.

One of the main factors considered by management is the public-to-private characteristic of the concession
relationship, Based on the current [PO strategy. the majority of the IPO sharcs on offer will be focused on
institutional investors including the State. However, the Government of the Republic of Croatia currently does not
have a formal and published strategy relating to its expectation on the continuation of sharehelding in the Company
and there are no formal plans on behalf of the Government to either sell its shares. retain its current shareholding or
further increase its sharcholding in the Company. As a result. on completion of the PO and subject to its final
outcome in terms of the final shareholder structure. the State may or may not end up with a non-controlling interest in
Luka Rijeka d.d. Due to these uncertainties. the determination of control over the Company would be possible only
after the review of the actual exercise of voting rights upon completion of the [PO. Afier this review. management
will conclude whether the concession arrangement remains a form of public-to-public service arrangement and
therefore not falling under the provisions of IFRIC 12 or it would become a public-to-private service arrangement. It
is possible that in the fuwre the Company will change its accounting policy regarding the accounting of service
concession arrangements with respect to this.

In case the Company changes its accounting policy according to IFRIC 12. management expects the change to
be applied retrospectively unless impracticable and the effect on the financial statements would be mainly as
follows: reclassifications from property. plant and equipment to intangible assets of the amount related to
leasehold improvements on the Grantor owned assets. recognition of intangible and/or financial assets relating 1o
“relevant assets” which are currently kept off balance sheet. and recognition of construction revenue and
construction costs in the statement of comprehensive income relating to the investment into infrastructure owned
by the Grantor.

[n the event of change in its accounting policy. the Company will develop a valuation and accounting model
which will enable it to estimate the amount of IFRIC 12 related assets and their type (cither intangible or
financial asset or a combination of both} which will need 1o be recognised in its statement of financial position.
and also the expected pattern and dynamics of [FRIC 12 related items which affect the future statements of
comprehensive income of the Company. Management currently does not have a quantification of the possible
cffect of potential [FRIC 12 application by the Company.

{ii) Deferrved tax assets recognitioit

The net deferred tax asset represents income taxes recoverable through future deductions from taxable profits
and is recorded in the staiement of financial position, Delerred income tax assets are recorded to the extent that
realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. In determining future taxable profits and the amount of tax
benefits that are probable in the future. management makes judgements and applies estimation based on previous
vears taxable profits and expectations of future income that are belicved to be reasonable under the existing
circumstances. The Group also makes judgements with respect to the corporate income tax rates used to measure
the deferred 1ax assets and liabilitics as the Group is entitled to a tax incentive in the form of a reduced tax rale
until 2016. Having this in mind. deferred tax balances. related to temporary differences which are expected to be
realised in periods prior to 2016. are measured using the reduced tax rate applicable to the period in which they
will be realised. Deferred tax balances related to temperary difference whose realisation is expected after 2016
are measured using the regular tax rate as the Group's lax incentive will no longer be in place. (see notes 3.21
and 15},
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NOTE 5§ - KEY ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Critical judgements and estimates in applving accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Actuarial estimates used in determining obligations for employee benefits

The cost of defined benefits is determined using actuarial estimates. Actuarial estimates involve assumptions
about discount rates. future salary increases. staff wrnover and the mortality or (luctuation rates. Due to the long-
term nature of those plans. these estimaies contain an element of uncertainty (see note 3.13 and 29).

(iv} Consequences of certain legal actions

There are a number of legal actions which have arisen from the regular course of operations. Management makes
estimates of probable outcomes of the legal actions and recognises provisions for liabilities arising from these
actions on a consistent basis.

‘The Group recognises a provision in the total expected amount of outflows of economic benelits as a result of
the court case. which is generally the claim amouni plus the estimated related lega! costs and penalty interest (if
applicable). if it is more likely than not. based on the opinion of management after consultation with legal
advisers. that the outcome of the court case will be unfavourable for the Group. The Group does not recognise
provisions for court cases or the expected related legal costs and penalty interest (if applicable) in cases where
management estimates that an unfavourable outcome of the court case is less likely than a favourable outcome
for the Group.

Where indications exist of a possible settlement in relation to a particular court case. a provision is recognised.
based on the best estimate of management made in consultation with its legal advisers. in the amount of the
expecled settlement less any existing amounts already provided for in refation to that particular court case.

Wherc the Group is a plaintiff in a particular court case. any economic benefits expecied to flow to the Group as
a result are recognised only when virtually certain which is gencrally as at the date of inflow of thesc economic
benefits.

Provisions for the Group's obligations arising legal actions are recognised on a consistent basis and estimated on
a case by case principle (see note 3.14 and 29).

) Recoverability of trade and other receivables

The recoverable amount of trade and other receivables is estimated at present value of future cash flows
discounted at the markel interest rate at the measurement date. Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate
are measured by the amount of original invoice if the effect of discounting is not significant.

The Group regularly reviews the ageing structure of trade receivables and monitors the average collection
period. In cases where debtors with extended payment periods (generally above 120 days) are identified. the
Group reduces the related credit limits and payment days for future transactions and. in cases where it deems it
nceessary. imposes restrictions on future transactions or delivery of cargo held in storage until the outstanding
balance is repaid either entirely or in part. In cases where the Group identifies receivables toward debtlors which
have entered into pre-bankruptey or bankrupicy proceedings. an impairment loss is immediately recognised in
full.

In the process of regulating the collection of overdue debis. the Group actively negotiates with the respective
deblors taking into account expectations of [uture business relations. significance of exposure te an individual
debtor. possibilities of compensation. exercise of instruments of security (if any) or seizure of assets etc.

(i) Revaluation of land

As the Group applies the revaluation model ol accounting for land. management applies judgement with respect to
the adequacy of the frequency of revaluations ensuring that they are performed on a basis regular cnough to cnsure
that the carryving amount docs not differ materially from the amount which would be determined using fair values at
the reporting date.

Management also applies judgement in ensuring that the revaluations are performed based on valuation reports from
independent. expert valuers and. where applicable. that the estimates and assumptions used by the valuers reflect the
managemeni’s own understanding of the specifics attached to each particular land plot.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 6 - DETERMINING FAIR VALUES

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control {ramework with respect to fair value mcasurement which assumes the
overall respensibility of the Management Board and finance depariment in relation to the monitoring of all
significant fair value measurements. consultation with external experts and the responsibility to report. with
respect the above. to those charged with corporate governance.

Fair values are measured using information collected [rom third parties in which case the Board and the finance
department assess whether the evidence collected from third partics support the conclusion that such valuations
meet the requirements of IFRSs. including the level in the fair value hicrarchy where such valuations should be
classified.

All significant issues related to fair values estimates are reported to the Supervisory Board and the Audit
Committee. Fair values arc categorised into different level in a fair value hierarchy based en the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level I - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1. that are observable Tor the
asset or liability either directly (ie as prices) or indirectly (ic derived (rom prices)

- Level 3 - input variables for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs)

The fair value of financial instrumenis traded in active markets is based on quoied market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange.
dealer. broker. industry group. or regulatory agency. and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The fair value of (inancial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example. over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as linle as possible on entity specific estimates. |f all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument arc observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more significant inputs are not based on observable market data. the fair value estimate is included in
level 3.

In preparing these financial statements. the Group has made the following significant fair value estimates
statements as further explained in detail in following notes:

e nole 18: Preperty. plant and cquipment (with respect Lo Jand)
e note 20; Invesiments in ¢quity accounted invesiees and other invesiments

e pote 21: Financial assets available for sale

Luka Rijeka d.d. 30



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 7- COMPARATIVES AND RESTATEMENT OF OPENING BALANCES
Resratements of opening balances

During 2014. a number of errors were identified in relation 1o the Group’s financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 and earlier which have not been withdrawn, In accordance with the
requirements of International Accounting Standard ("lAS”} 8 Acconnting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors. these errors have been retrospectively corrected in these financial statements.

(i) Prolonged useful life of non-current asseis

In 2010. the Group re-assessed the uselul lives for a number of property. plant and equipment items whereby the
revised estimated useful lives did not adequately reflect the actual remaining useful lives of these assets which
was not in accordance with 1AS 16 Property. plant and equipment. The Group restated its opening balances as at
1 January 2012 and its financial statements for the years ended 3} December 2012 and 2013 and aligned the
depreciation rates of these assets with the appropriate remaining useful lives.

(ii) Impainnent of available-for-sale financial assets

Up to 31 December 2014. the Group recognised losses on available-for-sale financial assets through other
comprehensive income and presented it directly in equity as a negative revaluation reserve even though these
losses represented objective evidence of impairment resulting from a significant and prolonged decline in value
which is not in accordance with 1AS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement which requires
such impairments to be recognized through profit or loss. The Group restated its opening balances as at |
January 2012 and its financial statements for the vears ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 by aligning the
accounting treatment of losses on available-for-sale financial assets with the requirements of 1AS 39,

(ili} Impairment of receivables from insurance policies

During 2014. the Group redeemed several life insurance policies (which represented a financial asset
incorporating a savings clement based on a yield payable to the Group on maturity) at a discount due to early
redemption and recorded the discount in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 even though the
terms of carly repayment and the amount of discount or loss on expected disposal were known and existed at 31
December 2013, As a result. the estimated discount on expected disposal should have been recognised as at 31
December 2013 as an impairment loss in accordance with [AS 39 Financial instrumenis: Recognition and
measurement, The Group restated its financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2013 to account for
this impairment in accordance with 1AS 39,

(iv) Impairment of other invesiments

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's investments included an investment into unrelated entities for which
indicators of impairment (recoverability of the investment was not probable) existed prior to | January 2012 and
which the Group should have impaired in accordance with LAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition aid
measurement. The Group restated its opening balances as at 1 January 2012 and its financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 to account for this impairment in accordance with 1AS 39.

) Impairment of land

During 2014, the Group revalued its land in accordance with the applied revaluation model of accounting for
land as prescribed by 1AS 16 Property. plamt and equipment. The revaluation resulied in a significant
impairment of one land plot following which the Group further investigated the reasons for such a discrepancy
between amounts previously reported and those resulting from the revaluation made in 2014, The valuation
report and the subsequent analysis performed by an independent valuation expert established that the impairment
of this land plot stemmed from impairment indicators (significant decline in market values) which existed in
previous years and which the Group should have objectively been aware of at that ime. As a result of not taking
into consideration the indicators of impairment which existed in previous years. the Group made a material error
resulting in the overstatement of land. The Group restated its opening balances as at | January 2012 and its
financial statements for the vears ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 10 account for the impairment of land for
which should have been recorded in previous period in accordance with 1AS 36 Impairment of assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 7 - COMPARATIVES AND RESTATEMENT OF OPENING BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(i) Recognition of finance lease contract

In 2003. the Group entered into a long-term finance lease agreement (maturing in 2018) with the Port Authority
of Rijeka with respect 1o the financing of certain machinery. From the inception of the lease until 31 December
2014. the Group made no pavments of either principal or interest with respect to the leased item as a result of
informal agreements with the lessor on postponement of payment. Furthermore. in its 2013 and 2012 financial
statements the Group previously recognized neither the assets nor the liabilities arising from this finance lease
agreement. which is not in accordance with 1AS 17 Leases which requires the recognition of finance lease
liabilitics and leased assets in the statement of financial pesition and the depreciation and interest charge through
profit or loss for the duration of the lease. As a result. the Group restated its opening balances as at 1 January
2012 and its financial statements for the vears ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 to account for the lease
agreement in accordance with [AS 17,

(vii) Reclassification of advances for non-current assers from other receivables to assets under construction

As at 31 December 2012, the Group recognized advances given to suppliers for the purchase of non-current
asscts as other receivables, insiead of recognizing them as non-current assets under construction. The Group
restated its balances as at 31 December 2012 and re-classified these advances from "Other receivables™ to
“Property. plant and equipment’.

(viii) Reclassification of investment propertv from properiy. plait and equipmment to investment property

In 2013. upon merging the subsidiary OPIl d.o.o. into the Company. the Group recognised the items classilied
prior to merger (by both the subsidiary and the Group) as investment property into property. plant and equipment
even though these items fulfilled the criteria of being classified as investment property as defined by the Group’s
accounting policies which is not in accordance with 1AS 40 fuvestment property and inconsistent with the
Group’s reporting in previous periods. The Group restated its balances as at 31 December 2013 and re-classified
the relovant items from “Property. plant and cquipment” 1o “Investment property”.

(ix} Reclassification of leasehold improvements from intangible to tangible assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group recognized leaschold improvements relating to tangible asset items as
intangible asscts. which is not in accordance with [AS 16 Property, plant and equipment and 1AS 38 Intangible
assets. Subsequently. the Group restated balances as at 31 December 2013 and re-classified leasehold
improvements from "Intangible assets’ 10 “Property. plant and equipment’.

{x) Deferral of recognition of restructuring costs

In periods prior {o 2012. the Group underwent a workforce restructuring process whereby the restructuring costs
were financed by dedicaled loan facilities. The Group recognised an accrued cxpense and accrued income
relating to the restructuring and effectively deferred the recognition of these restructuring costs in order to match
them to the respective loan repayments and future savings expected as a result of the restructuring process. This
treatment is not in accordance with [AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Comtingent Assets which does
not allow for the deferral of such restructuring costs and instead requires them to be recognised through profit or
loss in the period when they arise, The Group restated its opening balances as at | January 2012 and its financial
statements for the vears ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 aligning the accounting treatment of restructuring
costs with the requirements of 1AS 37,

{xi) Recognition of provisions for emplovee benefits

In previous periods. the Group did not provide for employee benefits (jubilee awards and severance payments)
arising from collective labour agreements and employment contracts as required by 1AS 19 Employee benefits.
The Group restated its opening balances as at | January 2012 and its financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2013 and recognised the provisions for relevant employvee benefits 1o reflect the
requirements o 1AS 19,

(xii) Recognition of provisions for court cases

In previous periods. the Group did not provide for court cases for which the circumstances requiring the
recognition of a provision {unfavourable court verdicts reached) existed in the prior periods. The Group restated
its opening balances as at 1 January 2012 and its financial statements (or the vears ended 31 December 2012 and
2013 by aligning the accounting treatment of provisions for court cases with the requirements of 1AS 37
Provisions, Comtingemt Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 7- COMPARATIVES AND RESTATEMENT OF OPENING BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(xiii)  Loss of control over a subsidiary

During 2011. the Group sold a 51% ownership share in a subsidiary (Jadranska vrata d.d.) constituting a loss of
control over the subsidiary. However. the Group neither consolidated the subsidiary up to the date of loss of
control nor did it recognise the remaining share in the former subsidiary at fair valuc as required by 1AS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. The Group restated its opening balances as at 1 January 2012
and its financial siatements for the vears ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 and aligned the accounting
treatment of the loss of control over the subsidiary in accordance with 1AS 27,

(xiv)  Recognition of the Group's share in profit or loss of the equily accounted investee

In 2011, subsequem to the disposal of the majority ownership interest in the subsidiary Jadranska vrata d.d.. the
Group did not recognise the share in the prolit or loss of the [ormer subsidiary in accordance with 1AS 28
Investments in associates which requires the application of the equity method of accounting and recognition of
the Group's share in the profit or loss of equity accounted investees. The Group restated its opening balances as
at 1 January 2012 and its financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 and aligned the
accounting treatment for the equity accounted investee in accordance with 1AS 28,

{xv) Measurement of deferred tax balances

As a result of operating in a dedicated “frec zone™. the Group is entitled to a tax incentive in the form of
reduction of corporate income tax rates the amount of which was predetermined in advance from 2003 up to
2016 after which the Group is no longer eligible for this tax incentive. However, in previous periods the Group
measured its deferred 1ax balances by applying the currently applicable tax rate for each period to the balance of
temporary tax differences arising in that period regardless of the expected timing of their realisation and the tax
rates at which they would eventually be realised which is not in accordance with IAS 12 fncome taves. The
Group restated its opening balances as at | January 2012 and its financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2013 to account for the measurement of deferred tax balance at the expected tax rates in
accordance with JAS 12,

{xvi) Reclassification adjustments

In the preparation of these financial statements. the Group made certain re-classifications between various
classes of assets as well as between classes of liabilitics. expenses and revenues relating to items which have not
been consistently classified in previous periods but which did not constitute restatement due to errors or changes
in accounting policics. Most significant reclassifications relate o offset of current liabilities and current assets in
cases where the Group will realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously or settle on a net basis, The
Group has reclassified such items in these consolidated (inancial statements to achieve comparability and
consistency of presentation,

The effect of restatements on the statement of comprehensive income and financial position are presented on the
following pages while the effect of the statement of cash flows is not presented as its preparation was not
practicable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 7- COMPARATIVES AND RESTATEMENT OF OPENING BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Retrospective overview of restatements in comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2012

(in thousands of HRK) 2012 Restatements 2012
Previously

reported (i} {vi) {x) (xi) fxii) (xvi) Restated

Revenue from sales 169.260 - - - - - - 169,260
Qther income 19,074 - - - - - 34 19.108
Operating income 188.334 - - - - - 34 188,368
Materials and consumables used (58.705) - - - - - - (58.705)
Personnel expenses (74.416) - - (1.388) 542 - (8.383) {83.845)
Depreciation and amortisation (2.027y  (239) (2.973) - - - - (12.239)
Provisions (30) - - - - - 30 -
Other expenses (39.483) - - - - (1310} 8494 (32.299)
(181,661)  (239) {(2973) (1.388) 542 (1310 (59} (187.088)

Finance income 4.832 - 507 - - - {43) 5.296
Finance costs {5.842) - (LIS4)  (309) - - 29 (7.276)
Net finance costs (1,010 - (647)  (309) = - {14 {1,980)
Share of profit of associate 384 - - - - - 39 923
Profit before tax 6,547 (239) (3.620) (1,697} 542 (1,310) - 223
Income tax (718} - - - (108) - - {826)
Profit/(loss) for the year 5829 (239} (3.620) (1,697) 434 (1310) - {603)
Other comprehensive income (net of 1ax) 6l - - - - - - 61
Income 1ax on OCIL {6) - - - - - - (6}
Total comprehensive incomef{loss) 5,884 239 (3,620) (1.697) 434 (1310) - (548)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 7— COMPARATIVES AND RESTATEMENT OF OPENING BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Retrospective overview of restatements in comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2013:

{in thonsands of HRK)

Revenue [rom sales
Other income
Operafing income

Materials and consumables used
Personnel expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Provisions

Other expenscs

Finance income

Finance costs

Net finance costs

Share of profit of associate
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit/{loss) for the vear

Other comprehensive income {net of tax)
Income tax on OCI

Tota! comprehensive income/{loss)

013 Restatements 013
Previously
reported  fi) i) i) {vi) {x) fxi)  fxip o) Restated
146.24H . - . 146.201
33516 - - (2.000) 460 33.976
181,117 - - - - - {2.000) 460 180,177
(59.346) - - - . - - {59.346)
(73.46Y) - - (1.762) 766 - (8.364) (83,329
(8.768) (239 - {1.486) - - - (10.493)
(31.577) - S & - - {1.327) 3878 (24.026)
{173.160) (239} E - (1486) {1.762) 766 (1.327) 14 (177,194}
3.369 938 (474) 5.853
{10.715) (334) (2.188) (1.104) {187} - 3000 (9.328)
(5.346) - (334) (2.188) (146) (187 - 5000 (474) (3,675)
1913 - - - - - - - 1913
5124 (239) (334) (2188) (1631} (1949) T66  1.673 - 1221
{385) - 428 328 - (154) 217
4,739 (239) 94 (1.860) (1.632) (1,949} 612 167 - 1.438
{3341 -3 - - - - - -
34 - {3} - S . - . . .
4439 (239 394 (1.860) (1.632) (1949 612 1673 - 1,438
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 8 - REVENUE FROM SALES

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012
Sales 1o domestic cuslomers 32.287 50.404 60.222
Sales to foreign customers 135.064 95.797 109.038

167,351 §46,201 169,260

The Group's revenues decreased in 2013 as a result of loss of revenuc toward a key forcign customer which
ccased operations for an extended period in 2013. The revenues subsequently recovered as a result of acquisition
of new customers and the recovery of the mentioned key foreign customer.

An overview of revenue per type of cargo is given below:

(in thousands of HRK} 2014 2013 2012
General cargo 60493 60,493 52.244
Bulk cargo 31.854 31.854 54.939
Port services 75.004 53.854 62.077
Total 167,351 146,201 169,260

General and bulk cargo revenue relates to fees the Group charges based on tonne of transhipped cargo while port
services relate to storage. warchousing manipulation and other services.

NOTE 9- OTHER INCOME

2013 2012

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 res tated restated
Gain on sale of non-current tangible and intangible assets 1.207 1.244 184
Donations and grants 27 1.443 3
Collection of bad debis 21 354 335
Insurance recoveries 762 1.945 2.191
Income from settlements - 9.663 -
Rental income 12.382 13.383 14.802
Reversal of provisions 666 2152 -
Other income 1.880 3.592 1.565
16,945 33,976 19,108

Rental income relates to income from rental of parking lots and oflices in the city of Rijeka.

During 2013. the Group reached a settlement with the Republic of Croatia with respect to unissued government
bonds relating to the privatisation of State owned residential real estate. In periods to 2012, the Group acted as an
agent for the State. in accordance with the relevant privatisation legislation. and sold a number of apartments
whereby a portion of the proceeds for sale represented a liability 1o the State which the Group recorded in its
financial statements. Further. as per the applicable legislation, the Group was entitled to receive government
bonds carrying a vield of 5% with a maturity of 5 years but which the State never issued and which were never
accounted for as assets by the Group. In 2013. the Group and the State settied out of court for an amount of HRK
9.663 thousand representing the vield the Group would have carned on the government bonds it was entitled to
had the State issued them.

In 2013, the Group released provisions for court cases with suppliers based on the settlement with the supplier
Hrvatske vode d.o.o.

In 2013. the Group received a non-refundable non-monetary grant from the State in the form of gravel and stone
leflover from the construction of a ncarby state road which was recognised in its entirety as income through
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 10 - MATERIALS, SERVICES AND CONSUMABLES USED

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012
Encrgy 14,180 12.859 13.582
Utilities 3.238 2.832 2.293
Postage and telecommunications 844 944 976
Concession fees 5.980 3.073 4.816
Transport services 8.671 4.855 6.783
Quality contro! and desinfection 1.386 1.375 1.632
Freight manipulation services 11.882 9.540 9471
Maintenance 9.386 8.549 6.935
Raw materials and consumables 8441 8.727 9.440
Rent 851 1.794 226
Other materials expenses 2519 2.798 2,531

67,398 59,346 58,705

Variable part of the concession fee for 2014 amounted 10 HRK 2,054 thousand (2073: HRK 1,800 thousand:

2012: HRK 1,924 thousand).
NOTE 11 - PERSONNEL EXPENSES

2013 2012

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Gross salarics and wages 66,052 63.725 64.148
Contributions on salaries 11.041 9.698 10.221
Other employee related cosis 4.135 9,906 9476
81,228 83329 83,845

As at 31 December 2014 the number of stafT employed by the Group was 701 (20/3: 7/9: 2012: 728).

[n 2014 termination benefits were accrued lor 1 employee in the amount of HRK 160 thousand and recognised
as an expense while in 2013 and 2012 the Group recognised termination benefits in accordance with 1AS 37
based on formal restructuring plans of HRK 6.275 thousand and HRK 5.988 thousand. respectively. The

restructuring related to termination of 32 employees in 2013 and 34 in 2012.
NOTE 12 - OTHER EXPENSES

2013 2012

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Bank charges 444 320 901
Intellectual services 2492 1.365 2.008
Fines and penalties 2014 1221 3.545
Reimbursement of costs to employees 3.025 313 3.171
Non-income related taxes. contributions and fees 10.134 9.631 11,094
Insurance 3121 5.336 6.423
Court fees and expenses 120 323 487
Impaimment of receivables 1.208 56 1.702
Marketing and entertainmenl 374 369 286
Increase in provisions for court cases - 1.327 1310
Otherexpenses 836 563 1.372
23,770 24,026 32,299

Non-income relaied 1axes. contributions and fees relate to utitity charges and fees for water regulation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 13 - FINANCE INCOME

2013 2012

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Interest and s imilar income 794 2051 3328
Foreign exchange gains 1.125 3.637 1.857
Gain on disposal of AFS financial assets 26 - -
Other financial income 96 165 111
2,041 5,853 5,296

Interest income mostly consists of inlerest on bank deposits in the amount of HRK 745 thousand (20/3: HRK

1.870 thousand: 2012: HRK 2,905 thousand).
NOTE 14 - FINANCE COSTS

2013 2012

(it thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Interest and similar expenses 4.608 4.690 6.117
Foreign exchange losses 3.827 2316 1.159
Losses on other financial assets - 2.188 .
Losses on equity financial instruments 158 334 -
8,593 9,528 7,276

During 2014. the Group redeemed prior to maturity its collective life insurance policies classified as non-current
financial assets. As the wansaction resulted in a discount (loss) at redemption which was already negotiated
previously during 2013. the Group recorded an impairment in the amount of the expected loss on redemption as

at 31 December 2013.

Interest and similar expenses relate mostly to interest on bank loans and finance leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 15 - INCOME TAX

Tax income consists of:

2013 2012
{in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Current income tax 121 385 718
Deferred tax (393) (602) 108
Income tax expensc/(benefit) 272) (217) 826

Reconciliation of the effective tax rate

A reconciliation of tax expense per the statement of comprehensive income and taxation at the statutory ratc is
detailed in the table below:

2013 2012
(in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Profit/(loss) before taxation {6.060) 1.221 223
Taxcalculated at 20% {L212) 244 43
Non-laxable income {19} (3) an
Non-deductible expenses 613 866 1.804
Taxeffect ol share in resull of equity accounted inveslee 256 (383) {185)
Recognition of previously unrecognised temporary differences - (328) -
Taxincentive - reduction of taxrate 90 (180) (827)
Effect of changes in taxrate - (428) -
Tax expense/(benefit) recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income (272) (217) 826
Effective tax rate 4% (18%) 370%

As at 31 December 2014. the Group has unused tax losses to carry forward of HRK 4.815 thousand (3/
December 2013 and 2012: nil) for which a deferred tax asset was rccognised as management believes that
sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be offset.

Tax incentive scheme

A significant part ol the Group's regisicred activity is performed in an area designated as a “free zone™ where the
State has a tax incentive scheme in place entitling entities operating within the zone to pay corporale income tax
at tax rate lower than regular tax rates. The tax incentive scheme has defined dynamic of the reduction of the
regular tax rate and expires in 2016 afier which the Group will no longer be entitled to use this incentive and will
have to pay taxes at a regular rate of 20%.

In 2014 and 2013. the Group was entitled to a 25% decrease of the regular tax rate (resulting in a reduced tax
rate of 15%) while in 2012 it was entitled to a 50% decrease of the regular tax rate (resulting in a reduced 1ax
ratc of 10%).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 15 - INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Delerred tax assel in the reported periads arase from the following:

Recognised
Opening Recognisedin  in profitor Closing
2012 (restated) balance equity loss balance

{tn thousands of HRK)

Land 4,002 - - 4.002
Other linancial assets 354 - - 354
Financial assets available forsale 758 6) - 752
Provision for employee entitlements 1.345 - (108) 1237
6,459 (6) (108) 6.345
Recognised
Opening Recognisedin  in profitor Closing
2013 (restated) balance equity loss balance

fin thousands of HRK}

Land 4.002 - - 4.002
Other financial assets 354 - - 354
Recaivables from insurance policies - - 328 328
Financial assets available for sale 752 - 128 1.180
Provision for cmployee entitlements 1.237 - (154) 1.083
6,345 - 602 6.947
Recognised
Opening Recognisedin  in profitor Closing
4 balance equity loss balance

(in thousands of HRK

Land 4.002 - - 4.002
Other financial assels 354 - - 354
Recaivables from insurance policies 328 - (328) -
Financial assets available for sale 1,186 {63) (109) 1.008
Provision for employee entitlenients 1.083 - (133} 950
Taxlosses - - 963 963

6,947 63) 393 1,277

Deferred 1ax assets with respeet to provisions relate 10 temporary differences arising from provisions on
employee entitlements (jubilee awards and retirement benefits) while the deferred tax assct with respect to land
relates o the impairment of two land plots.

In accordance with the criteria for measurement of deferred taxes with respect to tax rates expected at the
realisation of the temporary differences. deferred tax assets related to land impairment and long term provisions
are calculated applying the regular tax rate while other deferred taxes assets are considered shorl term and
calculated by applying the relevant reduced tax rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 15 - INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liability in the reported periods arose from the following:

2012 (restated)

Revaluation of land

Investments in equily accounted invesices

2013 (restated)

Revaluation of land

Investments in cquity accounted investees

2014

Revaluation of land

Investmenls in equity accounted invesiees

Recognised
Opening Recognisedin  in profitor Closing
halance equity loss balance
fin thousands of HRK)
4554 - - 4.554
5617 - - 5.617
10,171 - - 10,171
Recognised
Opening Recognisedin  in profitor Qlosing
balance equity lass balance
{in thousands of HRK)
4554 - - 4.354
5.617 - - 5.617
10,171 - - 10,171
Recogmised
Opening Recognisedin  in profit or Closing
balance equity loss balance
(in thousands of HRK)
4.554 4353 - 9.107
5.617 - - 5617
10,171 4,553 - 14,724

Deferred tax liability relating 1o investments in equity accounted investees relates 1o the surplus from
measurcment of remaining interest in a former subsidiary Jadranska vrata d.d. as a result of loss of control
subsequent to the Group disposing of 31% of its sharcholding in the subsidiary in 2011.

Deferred tax liability with respect to land stems [rom the Group’s application of the revaluation model of

accounting for land and the respective revaluations.

In accordance with the criteria for measurement of deferred taxes with respect 1o tax rates expecied at the
realisation of the temporary differences. deferred tax liabilities are considered long term and calculated by

applying the regular tax rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 16— EARNINGSH{LOSS) PER SHARE

2013 2012
(in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Profit/(loss) lor the year (in HRK thousands} {5.788) 1438 (603)
Total and weighted number of issued shares 5.080.475 5080475 5980475
Earnings per share (basic and diluted) in HRK (restated) (0.97) 0.24 {0.10)
Earnings per share (basic and diluied) in HRK (previoush reporied) .79 097

Basic earnings per share arc determined by dividing the Group's net earnings or losses with the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. The Group does not own any treasury shares. The Group has
not issued any potentially dilutive instruments.

NOTE 17 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangibles in

(in thousands of HRK) Software progress Total
Cost

As at 1 January 2012 3,056 315 3371
Additions - 359 359
Transfers 674 (674) -
Disposals and write-ofi’s {10 e (0
At 31 December 2012 3,720 - 3,720
Additions (restated) - 85 85
Transfers (restated) 85 (83)

D¥isposals and write-olf's - - -
At 31 December 2013 (restated) 3,805 - 3,805
Additions - 14 14
Transfers 14 (14) -

Disposals and write-off's - S 5
At 31 December 2014 3,819 - 3.819

Accumulated amortisation

As at | January 2012 1,936 - 1,936
Charge for the year 316 - 316
Disposals and write-off's (10) & (101
At 31 December 2012 2,242 - 2,242
Charge for the vear 405 - 403
Disposals and write-oif's - - -
At 31 December 2013 2,647 - 2,647
Charge for the vear 401 - 401
Disposals and write-off's 5 . .
At 31 December 2014 3,048 - 3,048
Carrying amount

As at 1 January 2012 1120 315 1,435
As at 31 December 2012 1,478 - 1,478
As at 31 December 2013 (restated) 1,158 - 1,158
As at 31 December 2014 m - 77
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 18 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assets
Equipment Leaschold under

{in thousands of HRK) Land Buildings  and fittings improvements construction Tolal
Cost
As at 1 January 2012 {reported}) 224,547 139,286 137,658 - 784 502,275
Restatements (note 7) {19.283) - 23,784 - - 4499
As at | January 2012 (restated) 205262 139,286 161,442 - 784 506,774
Additions . - 3 - 25.743 353,16
Disposals and write-off's - (46) {5.576) - - 15.622)
Transfers - - 2142 - {2,142) -
At 31 December 2012 (restated) 205,262 139,240 158,011 - 24,385 516,898
Addinons (restated) . 889 1.306 - 25801 27.9%6
Disposals and write-off's . (465) (5.036) - - {5.501)
Transfers (restated) 130 474 40,839 2151 (43.594) -
At 31 December 2013 105,392 140,138 195,120 2,151 6,592 549,393
Addinons - - - 16.116 16.116
Dispesals and wnte-off's - - (3.039) (2151} - (5.190)
Transfers 342 - 2652 2179 15.673) -
Revaluahon 22734 - - - - 22,739
At 3| December 2014 228,973 140,138 194,733 2,179 17,035 583,058
Accumulated depreciation
As at | January 2012 (reported) - 17,7112 116,008 - - 133,730
Restatements (note 7) - 478 21143 - - 21,621
As at | January 2012 (restated) - 28,200 127,151 . - 155,351
Charge for the vear (restated} - 24385 9,191 - - 11,676
Disposals and write-off's - (45) (5.563) - - 15.608)
At31 December 2012 (restated) - 30,640 130,779 - - 161419
Charge for the vear (restated) - 2551 1370 18 - 9.939
Disposals and write-ofl’s - (462) {5.026) = - (5.438)
At 31 December 2013 (restated) - 31,719 133,123 18 - 165,870
Charge for the vear - 3.605 5.904 20 - 9.52¢
Disposals and write-olTs - {953) (778) (18) - (1.751}
At 31 December 2014 - 35379 138,249 20 - 173,648
Carrying amount
As at 1 January 2012 {restated) 105,262 111,086 34,291 - 784 351423
As at 31 December 2012 (restated) 205,262 108,600 17232 - 14385 365479
As at 31 December 2013 {restated) 205,392 107,409 61,997 2,133 6,592 383,513
As at 31 December 2014 218,973 104,759 56,484 2,159 17.035 109,410

Asscts under construction relate mainly 10 investments in development of terminal Skrljevo which is owned by
the Group and not part of the area under concession. The Group is currently in the process of raising capital
through an IPO aimed at funding the expansion of the Skrijevo terminal and its supporting facilities.

Land and buildings of the Group with a carrying amount of HRK 80.897 thousand (2013: HRK 39.895 thousand:
2012: HRK 39,768 thousand) are mortgaged against the Group's borrow ings.

l.eased equipment where the Group is the lessee under a [inance lease arrangement has a carrying value in the
amount of HRK 3.438 thousand (20/3. HRK 3,688 thousand: 2012: HRK 4,934 thousand).

2013 2012
(it thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Cost of capitalised finance leasces 31.820 31.820 31.820
Accumulated depreciation (28.382) (28.132) (26.886)
Carrying value 3438 3,688 4,934
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 18 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Revaluanon of land

The carrving amount that would have been recognised had the land been carried under the cost model amounis (o
HRK 184.285 thousand. As at 31 December 2014, the revaluation surplus recognised in revaluation reserves
amounts to HRK 35,752 thousand.

The Group revalued its land during 2014 based on fair value estimates made by an independent expert valuer
resulting in a revaluation surplus of HRK 22.739 thousand. As a result of the revaluation exercise. the Group
also restated opening balances of certain land items with respect to prior period impairments as explained in note
7(v).

Measurement of fair values

Revaluation of land is performed on the basis of independent expert valuer reports. For most land plots. the
method used for measuring the fair value of land by the valuer is the comparison of realised market selling prices
for similar and comparable real estate taking into account geographical specifics. type of land plot. restrictions
imposed by local building regulations and other factors.

The Group's land balance alse includes a land plot valued at HRK 22 million which is currently used as a
parking lot and has revalued this item using a discounted cash flow method bascd on an estimated yicld of 6.14%
over a 30 year period. The Group has not classified this land as investment property as the initial planned
purpose was to build own premises for use in the principal activity. but is currently in the process of considering
its purpose and conversion into investment property which would result in its reclassification.

NOTE 19— INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2013 2012
{in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Cost
At | January 13.653 14.541 14.541
Disposals and write-off's (635) (388) -
13,018 13,653 14,541
Accumulated depreciation
Al 1 January 2.954 2,909 2.662
Charge for the vear 197 149 247
Disposals and write-off's (113) (104) -
3,036 2,954 2,909
As at 31 December 9,982 10,699 11,632

Investment property relates to 45 apartments owned by the Group and leased for an indefinite period to protected
tenants.

Following the revision of the lease agrecments with protected tenants. instead of paying a protected leasc rental
tee. the tenants agreed to pay for mandatory monthly maintenance fees and operational expenses stemming [rom
the use of the apartments, As a result. the Group does not generate rental income {rom apartments but also does
not incur direct operating expenses (including maintenance and repairs) as these are borne by lessees,

Overall business operations relating to investment property are performed by the subsidiary Stanovi d.o.o.

The Group regularly tests the investment property for impairment by analysis of comparable real estaie prices.
As al the reporting dates. current quoted market prices for similar propertics and realised sales prices do not
indicate impairment and the carrving amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. Furthermore. in 2014,
the Group sold 4 apariments and realised a gain on sale of HRK 693 thousand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 20 - INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INYESTEES

The investments in equity accounted investees relate to the following:

2013 2012

(in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Jadranska vrata d.d. 89,163 90.444 88.531
89,163 90,444 88,531

During 2011. the Group sold a 51% ownership interest in its former wholly owned subsidiary Jadranska vrata
d.d. As a result. upon loss of control. the Group ceased consolidating the subsidiary and remcasured the
remaining interest therein to fair value based on a valuation performed by an expert independent valuer and with
the surplus from the remeasurement being recognised as financial income at the date of disposal. From the date
of loss of control. the former subsidiary is accounted for as an associate by applying the equity method of

accounting.

Movement in the investment in equity accounted investees is as follows:

2013 2012
{in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
As al | January (reported) 60445 59.522
Restatement (note 7 (xiii)) 28.086 28.086
As at 1 January (restated) 90,444 88,531 87,608
Share of profit/(loss) in cquity accounted investees {1.281) 1.913 923
As at 31 December 89,163 90,444 83,531
Summary of information about the equity accounied investee Jadranska vrata d.d. is as follows:
Asat3l Dec Asat3l Dec Asat3] Dec
{in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012
Assets 211,499 237,966 143.726
Liabilities 89.414 109.985 19.649
Revenue 67.663 61.329 52.890
Net profit/{loss) (2.614) 3903 1.883

Principal operations of the equity accounted investee are related to operating a container cargo terminal in port of

Rijeka arca and the provision of related port services.

The Groups held an ownership interest in Jadranska vrata d.d. amounting 10 49% in all reporting periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2614

NOTE 21 — FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Financial assets available for sale comprise following:

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012
Investment in quoted equily securities 2217 2,542 2.876
2217 2,542 2,876

Movement in AFS financial asscts was as follows:

fin thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012
As at 1 January 2.542 2.876 2.815
Impairment recognised through profit or loss (restated) (158) (334) -
Revaluation recognised through equity 422 - 6l
Disposals during the vear {389} - -
As at 31 December 2217 2,542 2,876

Fair value measuremeit

The fair value of investments in shares of listed companies is based on stock market prices at the reporting date.
In accordance with the input variables used. the assessment is categotized in the fair value hicrarchy as level |
(see note 6). Investments in equity instruments quoted on the stock exchange but where there is no active market
are carried at cost and tested for impairment regularly. The majority of AFS financial assets (HRK 2,033

thousand as at 31 December 2014) rclates to shares of companics listed on the Zagreb stock exchange which
have an active market.

NOTE 22 - NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

2013 2012

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Non-current receivables for apartments sold 8.380 9.697 10.930
Receivables from insurance policies - 7.710 8219
Other financial assets 42 71 71
Other non-current receivables 318 153 193
8,740 17,631 19,413

(i) Receivables for apartments sold

Non-current reccivables relate 1o receivables for apartments sold on credit fo employees which are EUR
denominated and do not bear interest. In 2014. 23 apartments were repaid in fult (2013 20 apariments; 2012: 19
apartments). As at 31 December 2014 a 1otal of 1.316 apartments were in repayment. Management considers
that the fair value of non-current receivables approximates their carrving amount as the effect of discounting are
estimated as immaterial due to low levels of current market interest rates [or similar loans,

(ii} Receivables firom insurance policies

Receivables from insurance policies relate to three collective life insurance policies with Croatia osiguranje d.d.
which are used by the Group as a savings instrument and carry a predefined vield which accrues up to maturity.
The policies cover emplovees whe have indefinite term employment contracts with the Group as the beneficiary.
Collective lile insurance policies are valid until 1 October 2022. 2 February 2025 and 1 July 2026, respectively,

During 2013. the Group recognised an impairment loss relating to these insurance pelicies in the amount of HRK
2.188 thousand as it expected to redeem them at an agreed discount prior to maturity (for further details sce note
7 (iii)). During 2014, these insurance policics were redeemed by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 23 — CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012
Short-term deposits in banks 19.000 34.000 47.540
Other loans. deposits and similar items 211 733 1.257

19,211 34,733 48,797

As atl 31 December 2013. short-term bank deposits in the amount of HRK 34.000 thousand (2012: HRK 47.540
thousand) were pledged as collateral (but not resiricted} for short term borrowings of the Group while as at 31
December 2014 shor-term bank deposits were not collateralised. Interest rate on short-term deposits are

variable. ranging from 1.8% to 3.5% per annum.

NOTE 24 - TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2013 2012
(in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Receivables from domestic customers 28.363 23.577 26.177
Receivables from foreign customers 5.507 3278 4,727
Current receivables for apartments sold on crednt 3,076 3,060 3.264
Receivables from State for taxes. contributions and fees 339 610 763
Advances given 4 - 125
VAT receivable 72 168 36
Prepaid expenses 526 888 941
Other recevables 153 1,712 1,549
38,042 35,293 37,582
Movements in the accumulated impairment allowance for trade receivables are as follows:
(in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012
At 1)anuary 12,385 13.622 13.522
Increase 1.208 56 1.702
Collected (21) {554) (335)
Written-off (2.424) (739) (1.267)
At 31 December 11,148 12,385 13,622
Impairment losses on trade receivables are included in note 'Other cxpenses'.
Ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
{in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012
Up to 90 days 30430 25,543 26,108
91-180 days 1.162 868 693
181-360 days 1.127 341 229
Over 360 days 1.153 1.603 872
33,872 28,855 30,904
Trade receivables are denominated in following currencics:
{in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012
Croatia (HRK) 28.365 23.577 26.177
European Union (EUR} 3.507 3.223 4726
USA (USD) = 35 |
33,872 28,855 30,904
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 25 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012
Cash with banks 1123 1279 1.103
Cash at hand 1.500 1.133 1.365

2,623 2,414 2,468

Cash with banks relates to cash accounts with commercial banks carrying an average interest rate of 0.3% to
0.5% per annum.

NOTE 26 - SHARE CAPITAL

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012

Share capital 598.048 598.048 598.048
598,048 598,048 598,048

As at 31 December 2014. 2013 and 2012. the Company’s share capital amounted to HRK 598.048 thousand.
distributed among 5.980.475 shares with a nominal value of each share amounting to HRK 100. All issued
shares are fully paid in and authorised.

An overview of key sharcholders and the sharcholder structure is as follows:

204 013 2012
Number of % of Number of % of Number of % of

shares  ownership  shares  ownership  shares  ownership

DUUDI - Republic of Croatia 4257326 71.19%  4.270.188 71.40%  4.307.143 72.02%
HZZO 484.780 8.11% 484.780 8.11%  484.780 8.11%
DUUDI - HZMO 21419 3.58% 214.196 358% 21419 3.358%
Societe Generale - Splitska Banka d.d.‘Croatia

osiguranje d.d. (cusiodial account) 146,080 244% 167.080 2.1%% 167.080 2.79%
CERP 12.993 0.22% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Jadrelinija d.d. 36,920 0.62% 36.920 062% 36.920 0.62%
Other sharcholders 328.178 13.85% 307.311 13.50% 770.336 12.88"%
Total 5,980,475 100.00% 5,980,475 100.00%  5,980.475 100.00%

DUUDI. HZZO0. CERP and HZMO are agencies and institutions of the Republic of Croatia while Jadrolinija d.d.
is a company owned by the Republic of Croatia. Through these institutions and companics and other smaller
sharcholders under control of the State. the Republic of Croatia holds a combined ownership interest in the
Company amounting o approximately 84%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 27 - RESERVES

2013 2012

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated res tated
Capital and other reserves 4.968 - 94
Revaluation reserves 36.111 17.566 17.566
41,079 17,566 17,660

The Company is required 1o create legal reserves under Croatian law amounting to a minimum of 5% of the
profit for the year until the otal legal reserves reach 5% of the share capital. The Company currently does not
have any legal reserve due to outstanding accumulated losses which are yet to be covered.

The Group’s capital and other reserves relate 1o unspecified reserves. During 2013. these reserves have been
transferred to cover accumulated loss of the Group. As at 31 December 2014, the Group made a setilement with
the Port authority of Rijcka ("PAR™) with respect to the finance lease arrangement for mobile cranes amounting
to HRK 30.497 thousand as at 31 December 2013 of which HRK 21.768 thousand relates to the principal with
the remaining part representing outstanding interest payable. As part of the settlement. the PAR forgave a
portion of the outstanding liability for the lcase and agreed with the Group the repayment of the remaining part
as an interest free finance lease with a duration of 7 ycars. Accordingly. the settlement resulied in the Group
recognizing a decrease in lease payables in the amount of HRK 4.968 thousand with the corresponding amount

being credited 1o capital reserves as a capital contribution from the owner (due to the fact that PAR is a State
controlled institution).

Revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of land with a minor amount relating to linancial asscts available
for sale.

NOTE 28 - BORROWINGS

2013 2012
(in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated res tated
Non-current borrowings
Bank loans 47.107 38.044 55.041
Loans from other financial institutions 1174 3.309 4,072
Finance lease liabilities 20.640 12.968 16.090
68,921 74,521 75,203
Current borrowings
Bank loans 43.847 22.379 14.811
Loans from other financial institutions 6.280 15.260 6.317
Finance lease liabilitics 2.815 11.899 9.928
52,942 49,538 31,056
Total borrowings 121,863 124,059 106,259

The maturity of bank loans and loans from other financial institutions at the reporting date is as follows:

(tn thousands of HRK) 20154 2013 2012
6 months orless 29.388 22959 10.269
6 — 12 months 20,739 14.680 10.859
| -2 years 13.343 16.217 20.206
2—5yecars 21170 29,226 29.236
Over 5 years 13.768 16. 110 9.671

98,408 99,192 80,241
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 28 - BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The maturity of lnance fease liabilitics at the reporting date is as follows:

fin thousands of HRK) 2014, 2013 2012

Principal Interest  Total Principal Interest  Total Principal Interest  Total

Up to | year 2815 1179 3994 11899 8232 20,131 9928 7536 17464
Between §and 2 years 2470 1014 3484 3.225 435 3.660 3.398 608 4,006
Between 2 and 3 years 9550 2070 11,620 7.354 583 7,937 8015 1037 9072
Over 5 years 8.620 488 9,108 2,389 - 2389 4677 28 4,705

23455 4751 28206 24867 9250 34,117 20018 9229 35247
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

(in thousands of IIRK) 2014 2013 2012
HRK 37.953 25.069 10.390
EUR 43.210 55.597 46,127
usb 40.700 43.393 49.742

121,863 124,059 106,259

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has a borrowing lacility for guarantees. overdraft or letiers of credit with a
commercial bank amounting to EUR 3 million out of which approximately EUR 0.6 million is undrawn at 31
December 2014,

Bank loans

Bank loans amounting to 1IRK 51.232 thousand have variable interest rates (20/3: HRK 35.213 thousand: 204 2;
HRK 44,642 thousand). The variable interest rates for bank loans were in the range from 2.5% to 5.0% per
annum (2013: from 2.7% to 3.2%: 2012: from 3.0% to 3.5%).

Bank loans amounting to HRK 39.722 thousand have fixed interest rates (20/3: HRK 45,210 thousand: 2012:
HRK 25.210 thousand). The fixed intcrest rates for bank loans included in the table above were in the range from
3.0% to 7.0% (201 3: from 3.0% to 7.0%; 2012: from 3.0% to 7.0%).

Loans from other financial institutions

Loans from other financial institutions relate to loans from Roval pension insurance fund which were used to
finance the workforce restructuring process in previous period. The loans bear fixed interest rates in the range
from 9.65% to 12%.

Finance leases

Finance leases in the amount of HRK 23.435 thousand relate mostly (o lease of equipment. Most of the balance
relates to the finance lease arrangement with the Port authority of Rijeka amounting to HRK 21.597 thousand at
31 December 2014, The terms of this (inance lease arrangement have been modified as at 31 December 2014
with the lease becoming non-interest bearing as a result. which in turn resulted in an increase of capital reserves
(refer to note 27) of the Company and a decrease of finance lease liabilities due (o the discounting of the lease
liability to its present value. The lease has a term of seven years ending in 2021,

Security

Bank borrowings in the ameunt of HRK 63.853 thousand ¢20/3; HRK 35.503 thousand: 2012: HRK 3,878
thousand) are secured by morigages over the Group's land and buildings (note 18). Additionally. as at 31
December 2013, shori-term bank deposits in the amount of HRK 34.000 thousand (201/2: HRK 47,540 thousand)
were pledged as collateral for the borrowings of the Group while as at 31 December 2014 bank loans were not
sccured by short-term bank deposits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 28 - BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Debt covenants

The Group has an outstanding US dollar denominated liability for a subordinated loan towards the Port
Authority of Rijeka based on a principal loan agreement for financing of infrastructure projects concluded
between the Port Authority of Rijeka and the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development ("IBRD™).
The loan liability amounts to HRK 19.102 thousand as at 31 December 2014 (HRK 21.625 thousand as at 31
December 2013: HRK 27.277 thousand as at 31 December 2072) and bears a LIBOR based variable interest
rate. The Republic of Croatia is the guarantor for the principal loan. The Group classifics the loan within bank
loans as the basis for the terms of the loan are derived from a bank loan.

According to the loan agreement with IBRD. the Group is obligated to maintain a “Debt service cover ratio”
{DSCR} at a minimum of 1.3. DSCR representing the ratio of net operating revenues (adjusted for depreciation.
amorlisation. debt charges. non-cash eperating charges and restructuring expenditure) to the aggregate amount of
repayment of principal and interest on all debt.

As at the reporting dates. the Group was in breach of this covenant. However. the Group has repaid the loan thus
far according 10 the scheduled repayment plans in addition to which IBRD regularly performs reviews of the
Group's records and is adequately informed as tw this long standing breach of covenants. Management actively
communicates with the both [BRD and the Port Authority of Rijeka and has applied judgment in estimating that
the loan will not fall due in the foreseeable future as a result of breach of covenant. Management’s eslimales in
this respect are based on the fact that the principal loan facility was restructured in 2014 1o provide financing for
additional infrastructure projects and also due to the fact that the loan is regularly serviced and if it should
become callable. the risk would lie with the principal debtor while the Group would remain committed to its
currently defined schedule of repayments toward the Port Authority of Rijeka.

Furthermore. management believes that the ability of the Group to service the loan is not in question as the
Group would be able to secure additional financing through further collateralisation of its assets (this primarily
refates to property. plant and equipment where approximately 80% of the assets are uncollateraliscd and also
uncollateralised short term bank deposits), in case its operational cash {lows should be insufficient to finance the
repayment of the loan on the contracted repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 29 - PROVISIONS

Jubilee
awards and
retirement Court
(in thousands of HRK) benefits cases Total
As at 31 December 2012 (restated)
Non-current 5.387 23.698 29.085
Current 946 19.282 20.228
6,333 42,980 49,313
As at 31 December 2013 (restated)
Non-current 4.965 13.074 18.039
Current 452 16.631 17.083
5,417 29,705 35,122
As at 31 December 2014
Non-current 3.850 13.074 16.924
Current 901 - 901
4,751 13,074 17,825
Movement in provisions was as follows:
Jubilee
awards and
retirement Court
(in thousands of HRK) benefits cases Total
As at | January 2012 (reported) - 11.722 11,722
Restatements (note 7 (). (i), (xvi)} 6.845 29.948 316,793
Asat | January 2012 (restated) 6,845 41,670 48,515
Increase 150 1.310 1.460
Decrease (662) - (662)
As at 31 December 2012 (restated) 6,333 42,980 49,313
As at 1 January 2013 (restated) 6.333 42,980 49313
Increase - 1.327 1.327
Decrease (916} (14.602) (15.518)
As at 31 December 2013 (restated)} 5,417 29,705 35,122
As at | January 2014 5417 29.705 35122
Increasc - - -
Decrease (666) (16.631) (17.297)
As at 31 December 2014 4,751 13,074 17,825
(i} Jubilee awards and regular retirement benefits

According to the Collective Agreement the Group has an obligation to pay jubilee awards and regular retirement
benefits. In accordance with the respective agreement. the employees are cniitled to a regular retirement benelit
in the net amount of HRX 10 thousand. of which HRK 2 theousand are taxable. No other post-retirement benefits

are provided.

Provisions for both jubilee awards and regular retirement benelits are calculated by an independent actuary.

using estimates derived on the basis of the following key assumptions:

Es timate
2013 2012
2014 restated restated
Discount rate 4.75% 4.75% 4.75%
Average rale of staff tumover 0% - 1% 0%- 1% 0%- 1%
Average expected retirement age (in ycars) 61-65 61 - 65 6l -65
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 29— PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)
(ii} Court cases

Lcgal provisions relate to a number of legal proceedings initiated against the Group which stem from regular
commercial activities and court cases including former employees. The expenses relating to the provisions are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “Other expenses’.

The structure of provisions as per type of court case as at the reporting dates was as follows:

2013 2012

(in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Supplier related court cascs 13.074 13.074 26.573
Taxauthorities court case - 16.631 16.407
13,0674 29,705 42,980

In 2013. the Group lost a court case with an insurer resulting in a decrease of provisions of HRK 5.000 thousand
and settled a court case with the supplier Hrvatske vode d.o.o. resulting in a decrease of provisions of HRK
9.602 thousand of which HRK 2,152 was released to income and the remainder paid out.

In June 2014. the tax authorities seized the Group's bank accounts for an amount of HRK 16.631 thousand based
on a court dispute from previous years resulting in the decrease of provisions. The Group filed a complaint and
will attempt to recover the funds through further court procecdings.

During 2014. the Group carried out a detailed legal duc diligence in order to assess the reasonablencss of
provisions raised. Based on the expert opinion of legal counsels. Management believes that the outcome of legal
proceedings the Group is expesed 1o. will not give rise to any significant losses beyond the amounts provided.

NOTE 30 - TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2013 2012

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 restated restated
Trade pavables - domestic 22214 18.989 15.129
Trade payables - foreign 1371 497 346
Liabilities toward employees 4.557 4.872 6.650
Liabilities forapartments sold 3.902 6.200 15.049
Interest payable 479 9.235 8.027
Liabilities for other taxes. contributions and fees 1.695 323 335
VAT liabilities 196 103 4]
Salary taxes and contributions payable 2.586 2,303 2357
Defermred income 3 11 -
Accrued expenses - 1.536 27
Other payables 2016 1.790 2213
45,019 45,859 50,174
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 31 - RISK MANAGEMENT
Capital risk management
Net debt to equity ratio (Gearing ratio)

The finance function of the Group reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. As part of this review. the
Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The gearing ratio at the
reporting date was as follows:

2013 2012
20014 restated restated

(in thousands of HRK)

Debi (long- and short-term borrowings ) 121.863 124.059 106.239
Short term bank deposits 19.000 34.000 47.540
Cash and cash equivalents (2.623) (2.414) (2.468)
Net debt 138.240 155.643 151,331
Equity 389,368 371643 370.205
Net debt (o equity ratio 6% 42% 41%

Debt is defined as long-term and short-lerm borrowings and bonds. Equity includes all capital and reserves of the
Group.

The Group manages its capital 10 ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern,

Apart from the gearing ratio. the Group regularly monitors the relation between consolidated current assets and
liabilities in order to assess the reasonableness of the going concem assumption applied in the preparation of its
financial statements and identify any requirements for additional financial via debt or equity.

As at 31 December 2014. the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by HRK 37.623 thousand
(2013: HRK 38.571 thousand 2012: HRK 11.090 thousand). However. the Group is currently in the process of
preparing for the issuc of additional equity via an 1PO expected to be linalized during 2015 which would secure
funding for strategic investments. improve liquidity and result in improvement of operational results in the
future. Furlthermore. management belicve that the ability of the Group to secure additional financing through
collateralization of assets for the purpose of bridging of any short term liguidity deficits is not in question. As a
result. management believes that the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 31 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management

The Group operates with international customers and finances its operations using foreign currency denominated
borrowings to a significant extent. As a result. the Group is exposed to the effect of changes in market prices and
of exchange differences and changes in interest rates. In addition. due 1o credit terms exiended 1o its customers.
the Group is exposed to a risk of default.

Categorics of financial instruments are as follows:
2013 2012
2014 restated restated

{in thousands of HRK)

Financial assets available for sale 2.217 2,542 2.876
Total AFS financial assets 2,217 2,542 2,876
Non-current receivables 8.740 9,921 11.194
Receivables from insurance policies - 7.710 8219
Short-term financial assets 19.211 34.733 48.797
Trade receivables 37173 33.795 35.753
Cash and cash equivalcnts 2.623 2414 2.468
Total loans and receivables 67,747 88,573 106,431
Total financial assets 69,964 91,115 109,307
Finance lease liabilities 23.455 24.867 26.018
Loan liabilities 98.408 99,192 80.241
Trade payables 35.982 36.711 40.764
Total financial liabilities at amortised cost 157,845 160,770 147,023
Total financial liabilities 157,845 160,770 147,023

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as fotlows:

o the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilitics with standard terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets is determined with reference to quoted market prices:

e the fair value of other financial assels and financial liabilitics is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments,

Financial instruments held 1o maturity in the normal course of operations are carried at the lower of cost and the
net amount less the portion repaid. Fair value is determined as the amount at which a linancial instrument can be
exchanged between willing and knowledgeable parties in an arm's-length transaction, except in the event of
forced sale or liquidation. The fair value of financial instruments is the one quoted on the securities market or
obtained using the discounted cash flow method.

As at 31 December 2014, the carrving amounts of cash and cash equivalents. short-term deposits. receivables.
short-term liabilitics. accrued expenses. short-tenm borrowings and other financial instruments approximate their
fair value duc to the shon-term nature of those assets and liabilities and duc 1o the fact that a majority of short
term assets and liabilities are at variable interest rates.

Management considers that the fair value of non-current reccivables of the Group stemming from the sale of
apartments to employvees does not significantly differ from the carrying amount due to the currently low market
interest rates for such reccivables. Managemeni regularly monitors relevant market interest raies on similar
assels in order to assess the reasonableness of this assumption.

As at the reporting dates. the carrying amounts of borrowings arising from bank and other loans approximates
their fair valucs as the majority of these borrowings bear variable interest rates or fixed interest rate
approximating current market interest rates.

The carrving amount of finance lcasc liabilities relates mostly to a non-interest bearing finance lease agreement
which has been discounted 1o its fair value by using the effective interest rate method at a discount rate on equal
to market interest rates on similar leases.
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NOTE 31 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Management board which manages the
Group's short. medium and long-term funding and liquidity requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
monitoring the net current asset position and addressing any expected current liquidity deficits.

Liquidity risk analysis

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and its financial
assels presented in the consolidated statement of financial position at the cach reporting period end. The tables
have becn drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows until maturity and include cash flows from both

interest and principal.

Carrying  Contractual up lol over S
as at 31 December 2014 amount cash flows year 1-2years 2-5years years
{in thousands of HRK)
Non-interest bearing.
Finance lease labilities 21,598 26,565 2222 2222 6.666 15.455
Trade payables 35,982 35,982 35.982 - - -
57,580 62,547 38204 2,222 6.666 15455
Interest bearing:
Finance lease habilitics 1,857 {2,919) 671 305 2.863 (6.758}
Loan liahilities 98.408 102,794 52.327 14.591 21.901 13.975
100,265 99.875 52,998 14896 24,764 7217
157,845 162,422 91202 17,118 31430 22,472
Carrying  Contractual  uptol over §
as at 31 December 2013 amount cash flows vear |-2years 2-35ycars years
{in thousands of HRK)
Non-interest bearing
Finance lease liabilities - - - - - -
Trade pavables 36,711 36,711 36,711 - - -
36,711 36,711 36,711 - - -
Interest bearing:
Finance lease liabilities 24,867 26,744 12.845 3193 1.657 2449
Loan liabilitics 99,192 104,370 40.050 17.820 30.148 16.352
124,059 13,114 52,895 21,613 373805 18,801
160,770 167,825 89606 21,613 37805 18,801
Carrving  Contractual  upto! over 3
as at 31 December 2012 amount cash flows vear |-2Zvears 2-3vyears years
{in thousands of HRK)
Noun-interest bearing:
Finance lease liabilities - - - - - -
Trade payables 40,764 40,764 40.764 - - -
40,764 10,764 40,764 - - -
Interest bearing:
Finance lease liabilities 26,018 28,342 10.981 4118 8.449 4.794
Loan liabilities 80,241 84,675 23.218 21.676 29.965 9.816
106,259 113,017 34,199 25794 38414 14,610
147,023 153,781 74963 25794 38414 14,610
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NOTE 31 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED}
Financial risk management (continued}

Liguidity risk management (continued)

Ligquidity risk analvsis (continued}

Carrying  Contractual up to 1 over 5
as at 31 December 2014 amount cash flows year |-2years 2-5years years
{in thousands of HRK)
Non-inierest bearing
Non-current receivables 8,740 8,740 1,300 1,300 3900 2,240
Trade receivables 37,173 37173 RYAVE] - - -
Financial assets available forsale 2,217 2,217 2217 - - -
48,130 48,130 40,690 1,300 3,900 2,240
Interest bearing:
Receivables from insurance policies - - - - - -
Cumrend financial assets 19,211 19,883 19,883 - - -
Cash and cash cquivalents 2,623 2,623 2,623 - - -
21,834 22,506 22,506 - - -
69,964 70,636 63,196 1,300 3,200 2,240
Carrying  Contractual over 5
as at 31 December 2013 amount cash flows upto | year 1-2years 1-3 years years
fin theusands of HRK)
Non-interest bearing:
Non-current receivables 9,921 9,921 1.300 1.200 3.900 3421
Trade receivables 33,795 33,795 33.795 - - -
Financial assets available for sale 2,542 2,542 2.542 - - -
46,258 46,258 37,637 1300 3,900 321
Interest bearing:
Receivables from insurance policies 1,710 1,710 1.710 - - -
Current financial assets 34,733 35,949 35949 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 2,414 2,414 2414 - -
44,857 46,073 46,073 - - -
91,115 92,331 83,710 1,300 3,900 3421
Carrying  Contractual uptol over s
as at 31 December 2012 amount cash flows year 1-Zyears 2-5years years
{m thousands of HRK)
Non-interest bearing:
Non-curtent receivables 11,194 11,194 1,300 1,300 3.900 4,694
Trade receivables 35,753 35,753 35,753 - -
Financial assets available tor sale 2,876 2876 287 - -
49,823 49,823 39,929 1,300 3900 4,694
Inrerest bearing:
Receivables from insurance policies 8,219 8,466 2.466 - - -
Current financial assets 48,797 50,505 30,503 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 2,468 2,493 2493 - - -
59,484 61,464 61464 - - -
109,307 111,287 101,393 1,300 3,900 4,694

I'he Group's analysis shows a deficit of short term contractual cash flows from financial instruments in 2013 and
2014 which is 10 a large extent atiributable 1o cash outflows from court cases during 2014 and 2013. and

corrections of prior period errors resulting in the recognition of additional financial liabilitics.

The Group plans to bridge the remaining liquidity gap by securing additional financing for working capital
requirements through collateralisation of assets. Additionally. as a result of the upcoming IPO. the Group expect

to further strengthen its liquidiy position.
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NOTE 31 — RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The
variable interest rates currently applicable on the carrving values of floating rate debt as at the reporting datcs are
based on the following:

2013 2012

{in thousands of HRK} 2014 restated restated
FURIBOR based bank loans 9.630 13.588 17.363
Z1BOR based bank loans 22.500 - -
LIBOR based bank loans 19.102 21.625 27.277
EURIBOR based finance leases 902 1.962 2.970
52,134 37,175 47612

huterest rate sensitivicy analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates al the reporting date.
Tor floating rate liabilities. the analysis is prepared by calculating the effect of a reasonably possible increase in
interest rates on floating rate debt on the expected contractual cash flows of such debt compared to thosc
calculated using the interest rates applicable at the current reporting period end date, A 30 basis point
increase/decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
the management s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

The estimated effect of the reasonably possible change in variable interest rates on the Group's result before tax
for the reporting periods is as follows:

Contractual uplo6 from 61012 from 1to2 from21035 over3

as ar 3 December 2014 cash flows months months years years  years
{in thousands of HRK}

Al currently applicable int. rates 5,178 16,051 17.850 §.787 11.490 -

At currently applicable nt. rates + 30 basis points 54,518 16.162 17.920 3.863 11.573 -

Effect of increase of int. rates by 50 basis points (340) (111 (70) (76) (83) -

Contractual upto6 fromé61o12 from 1102 from2105 overd

as at 31 December 2013 cash flows months months vears years  years
{in thousands of HRK)

Al currently applicable int. rates 39661 5479 5.393 10.222 18.567 -

Al currently applicable int. rates + 50 basis points 0,066 5.565 5.467 10.334 18.700 -

Effect of increase of int. rates by 50 basis points (405)  (86) (74) (112) {133) :

Contractual upto6 from 61012 from bto2 from2to3 overs

as at 31 December 2012 cash flows monihs months years years  years
{in thousands of HRK}

At currently applicable int. rates 51,328 5.674 5.594 12.398 24443 3219

Al currently applicable int. rates + 50 basis points 51,930 5.787 5.695 12.558 24.663 3.227

Effect of increase of int. rates by 50 basis points (602)  (113) (101) (160) (2200 (8)

The Group does not hedge interest rate risk as the estimate of possible effect of interest rate changes on the result
of operations in not deemed significant.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 31 — RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management (continued)
Currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain (ransactions denominated in forcign currencies. Hence. exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monctary asscls and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities

2013 2012
2014 restated restated

(in thousands of HRK)
Furopean Union (EUR} 50.581 56.094 46473
USA (USD) 40.700 52122 57.628
91,281 108,216 104,101

Assets

2013 2012
2014 restated res tated

e Ly i o - (in thousandssof HRK)
Furopean Union (EUR) 16.963 15.980 18.920
USA (USD) - 55 1
16,263 16,035 18,921

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuations in the exchange rate of Croatian kuna to Euro and US dollar.
since the most of the transactions with intemational customers is in Euro and US dollar.

The following table details the Groups sensitivity to a | % increase in Croatian kung against the EUR and a 10%
increase against the USD as the cstimated reasonably possible change in the exchange rate of the respective
currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding balances in foreign currencies which are recalculated at
the reporting date applying a percentage change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
monctary assets and monetary liabilitics in foreign currencies. A negative number below indicates a decrease in
profit and other equity where Croatian kuna increases against the relevant currency for the percentage specified
above. For a weakening of Croatian kuna against the relevant currency in the same percentage. there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit.

EUR exposure
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands of HRK}
Increase/(decrease) of net result {336) {401) (276)
USD
2014 2013 2002

{in thousands of HRK)
Increasef{decrease) ol net result (4.070) (5.207) (5.763)

The Group does not currently hedge currency risk with respect to the EUR as the local currency is pepged
against the EUR but is assessing the need for hedging against the USD given the recent volatility of this currency
and the exposure o it arising from USD denominated loan and leasc balances as well a concession fees which
are determined in USD.
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NOTE 31 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group.

Customers are classified into risk groupings based on the financial indicators and own trading records. and
appropriate credit risk mitigation measures are taken for each risk class. Customers arc classified mainly on the
basis of official financia! statements of customers. and credit ratings supplied by independent rating agencies.
and the history of wading with each customer.

The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and credit exposure
is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed at least annually.

The Group has no significant credit exposures that would not be covered by collateral and which have not been
assessed for impairment indicators as at 31 December 2014,

Operational risk management

Sales concentration risk management

The Group generates approximately 19% (2043 34%; 2012: 36%) of its revenue from domestic customers.
whercas around 81% (20/3: 66%. 2012 64%) of the sales are gencrated from international customers (based on
geographical location of customer). The Group determines the selling prices in accordance with the
macroeconomic conditions prevailing in each of the markets where the customers are located having in mind the
maximum approved tariffs for services defined in the concession agreement.

The Group’s revenues are to a significant extent exposed to volatility due to high concentration of revenues from
a smaller number of customers. In 2014, top 10 customers of the Group generated approximately 54% of
operating revenues (2013: 45%; 2012: 49%) while the top five customer generated approximately 36% of
operating revenues (20/3: 31%; 2012: 35%). The most significant individual cxposure is to a key foreign
customer which made up for 12% of total operating revenue of the Group in 2014 (2013: 4%, 2012: 12%) and
accounted for most of the decline in revenues in 2013, As a result of its exposure to a small number of customer.
the Group manages this risk through active and frequent communication with key customers. acquisitions of new
customers. and through monitoring of relevant competitors and market conditions both locally and
internationally.

The continuation of the economic crisis during the reporting peried had a negative impact on sales growth
opportunities and consequently increased the risk of collectability of receivables. The Group also expects
increased risks associated with maintaining market position (both in terms of international and domestic
customers) due to the strengthening of competitors. To lessen this effect. the Group aims to further increase its
competitivencss by increasing productivity and capacity and modernising its technology. which it expects to
achicve 1o a large extent through the realisation of the Skrljevo project coupled with the expected refurbishment
of local railways.

Luka Rijeka d.d. 63



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 32 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The majority owner of Luka Rijeka d.d. is the Republic of Croatia which holds 84% of share capital and voting
rights of the Company through the Government Asset Management Ageney ("GAMA™ or "DUUDI") and other
State institutions.

The Group considers that it has an immediate related party relationship with its key sharcholder (the Republic of
Croatia) and entities under its control or influence: key management personnel (see below): close family
members of key management personnel: and entities controlled. jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
key management personnel and their close family members. in accordance with the definitions centained in
International Accounting Standard 24 Relared Party Disclosures ("IAS 247).

Transactions with State related parties

Given that its majority owner is the State. the Group is also in a related party relationship with State institutions
and other companies in which the State is a majority owner or has significant influence. Significant transaclions
of the Group with such entitics relate to purchase of water and fuel used as a consumable in the business
operations of the Group. freight rail transport services and supply of clectricity. Transactions with the Port
Authority of Rijeka which is the Grantor of the concession for the primary activity of the Group. other those with
respect to tent of premises and regular services as presented below. arce disclosed in more detail separately
further in this note.

Receivables and sales with the State and related parties:

(in thousands of HRK} 2014 2013 2012

Petrokemija d.d.

Sales of services 1,592 3.167 3.813
Receivables as at 31 December 335 361 73
Port Authority of Rijeka

Rent of premises and provision of regular services 1.173 494 849
Receivables as at 31 December 114 198 115
Crosco d.o.o.

Sales of services - 1.023 742
Receivables as at 31 December - 47 -
Customs office Rifeka

Sales ofservices 176 209 182
Receivables as at 31 December 18 2l 16
Commodity reserves directorate

Sales of services - 243 253
Receivables as at 31 December 5 17 27
Jadrolinija d.d.

Sales of services 225 422 433
Receivables as at 31 December 23 15 18
Auwtotrolejd.o.o.

Sales of services 1.718 2,155 2.138
Receivables as at 31 December 6 4 3
Rijeka promet d.d.

Sales of services 2952 3.738 3.673
Receivables as at 31 December = i2) -
INA Gronp

Sales of services 186 300 873
Recelvables as at 31 December 34 - 378
Total sales 8,022 11,951 12,976
Total receivables as at 31 December 750 661 630
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NOTE 32 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Transactions with State related parties (continned)

Payables and purchases with the State and related parties:

(in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012
HEP Group

Purchase of electricity 9.480 9.899 8.927
Liabilities as at 31 December 2.863 1.728 1.388
HZ Group

Purchase of transport services 116 131 155
Liabiliies as at 31 December - 46 15
INA Group

Purchase of fucl 366 562 297
Liabilities as at 31 December 41 (74) 71
Croatia insurance Group

Purchase of insurance policies 3.034 5.251 8.273
Liabilities as at 31 December 127 383 792
Vodovod d.o.o. Labin

Purchase of water services 162 88 74
Liabilities as at 31 December 43 8 10
Vodovod i kanalizacija d.o.0. Rijeka

Purchase of water services 698 915 1.145
Liabilitics as at 31 December 173 239 158
Energod.o.o.

Purchase of gas 40 61 6l
Liabilities as at 31 December 10 1 10
Total purchases 13,896 16,907 18,932
Total liabilities as at 31 December 3,257 2,341 2,444

In 2013, the Group reccived a non-refundable non-monetary grant from the State in the form of gravel and stone
leftover from the construction of a nearby state road which was recognised in its entirety as income of HRK

1.149 thousand through profit or loss.

Transactions with associates

The Group enters into transactions with the associate company Jadranska vrata d.d. where Luka Rijeka d.d. has a
49% ownership interest. Transactions with the associate relating to balances in the statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2014, 2013 and 2012 and transactions in the statement of comprehensive income flor the years

then ended are as follows:

(in thousands of HRK)

Trade receivables
Trade payables

Sales revenue and other inconw
Purchases

2014 2013 2012
12 412 138

- - 35

124 1.595 2,113
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NOTE 32 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Transactions with the Port Authority of Rifeka
(i) Concession fees

During 2014, the Group recognized expenditure related to concession fees toward the Port Autharity of Rijeka in
the amount of HRK 5.980 thousand (2013 HRK 5.073 thousand: 2012: HRK 4,816 thousand). The concession
fees relates to the service concession arrangements for the provision of port services in the port of Rijeka area
and on the $krijevo terminal. As at 31 December 2014. the Group owed to the Port Authority of Rijeka a total of
HRK 625 thousand with respect concession and related expenses (2013 HRK 487 thousand; 2012: HRK 2.938
thousand).

(if) Finance leases

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has a finance lease balance payable to the Port Authority of Rijeka with a
carrying amount of MRK 21.597 thousand (2043: HRK 30.497 thousand: 20{2: HRK 30.352 thousand)
including related interest. The terms of the lease were modified as at 31 December 2014 and the lease was
converted (o a non-interest bearing finance lease which resulted in the Group recognizing a capital contribution
due 1o the fact that the lease is contracted at below market interest rate. The lease matures in 2021. No payments
of either principal or interest were made during the reporting periods,

(i) Subordinated loan based on the IBRD principal loan

The Group has an outstanding US dollar denominated liability for a subordinated loan toward the Port Authority
of Rijeka based on a principal toan agreement for financing of infrastructure projects concluded between the Port
Authority of Rijcka and the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (“IBRD™). The loan liability
amounts 1 HRK 19.102 thousand as at 31 December 2014 (HRK 21,625 thousand as at 31 December 2013;
HRK 27.277 thousand as at 31 December 2012) and bears a LIBOR based variable interest rate. The Republic of
Croatia is the guarantor for the principal loan. During 2014, the Group repaid a total of HRK 5.216 thousand of
principal and interest with respect to this loan (2013: HRK 4.866 thousand: 2012: HRK 5.144 thousand).

Remuneration to the Management Board members

Key management of the Group comprises the Management Board and consists of 3 persons (20/3: 3 persons;
2012: 7 persons). During 2014, the Group paid out HRK 1.841 thousand to the Management Board (20/3: HRK
1.793 thousand: 2012: HRK 2,139 thousand) with respect to gross salaries and bonuses.

NOTE 33 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS
Exposure to cOurt cases

As at 31 December 2014 there are number of legal proceeding against the Group which stem from regular
commercial activities and court cases including former employees.

The Group's exposure to court cases with suppliers as at 31 December 2014 amounts to approximately HRK 146
million (based on claim amounts refating to cases in progress) out of which the Group recognized provisions
amounting to HRK 13.074 thousand as at 31 December 2014 (204 3: HRK 29.705 thousand; 2012: HRK 42,980
thousand) in relation to court cases where it expects an unfavorable outcome. The remaining exposure relates to
court cases with suppliers which management belicves will not result in losses for the Group out of which a
majority relates to a court case with a domestic supplier in the amount of HRK 101 million where the Group
considers. afier consultation with legal advisers, that the basis of the court cases is unfounded and does nat
expect an unfavorable outcome.

The Group's exposurc to court cases with former employees stems mostly from work related injuries and
amounts to approximately HRK 5.8 million based on the total amount of claims relating to cases in progress as at
31 December 2014, As a large number of these cascs are expected to be long-term processes which are only in
the starting phase and arc in parl covered with insurance policies of the insurer who is the co-defendant.
management currently believes. afier consultations with legal advisers. that these cases will not result in
significant lesses for the Group.

Based on consultation with legal advisors, management applied its judgment as described in more detail in note
5 and estimated that the legal proccedings the Group is involved in should not give rise to significant losscs
above those already provided for as detailed in note 29.

Luka Rijeka d.d. 66



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 33— CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Potential penalties arising from minimal service limits defined in the concession arrangement

According 1o the concession agreement in place. from 2016 onward the Group is obligated to maintain minimal
service levels delined in quantities of transshipped cargo and based on the initial business plans submiticd to the
Port Authority of Rijeka at the inception of the agreement. Sheuld the minimal service levels not be met. the Port
Authority ol Rijeka would be entitled to charge concession penaltics based on the variance of actual versus
initially planned service levels.

Current service levels are significantly lower than those envisaged in the initial business plans. Had these
provisions been applicable in 2014. the Group would have incurred approximately HRK 8.7 million in penaltics.

Currently. the Group is in the process of finalizing an updated business plan and is actively ncgotiating with the
Port Authority of Rijeka with respect to the replacement of the initial business plan with the updated business
plan. The Group expects that the amendments to the provisions of the concession arrangement relating to the
updating of business plans will be adopted by the Grantor during 2015 in which case the new business plans will
be the basis for calculating any eventual penaltics arising from minimal service level requirements.

NOTE 34 - CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has capital commitments stemming from the concession agreement whereby it is obligated to invest
into port infrastructure in a total amount of EUR 146 million out of which approximately EUR 60 million relates
1o eslimated maintenance of port infrastructure for the duration of the concession while EUR 86 millicn relates
10 planned capital investments into port infrastructure and coastal and mobile mechanisation. These capital
investments have the [ollowing timeline of realisation:

Uptol 1-2 2-35 Ower5

as at 31 December 20014 vear years years years Total
(in thousands of HRK)

Coastal mechanisation and cranes - - 24320 70.604 94924

Mobile mechanisation - 46H 23226 45714 73,584

Buildings 6.814 15022 105298 - 127,134

Cargo terminals - - - 363.245 363,245

Estimated costs of maintenance of concession assets - - - 459.688 459,688

6,814 12,666 152,844 939,251 1,118,575

NOTE 35 - GROUP STRUCTURE

As at the reporting dates the Group consisted of the Company and its subsidiarics in which the Company held
ownership interests as follows:

{in thousands of HRK) 2014 2013 2012

% of ownership % of ownership % of evwnership
OPld.o.0. - - 100%
Luka prijevozd.o.0. 100% 100% 100%

Stanovid.o.0. 100% 100% 100%
Privez-odvezd.o.o. - 100%0 00%

The Company merged its subsidiary OPl d.0.0. on 7 February 2013. During 2014. the Company also merged its
dormant subsidiary Privez - odvez d.o.o.
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